
  1 

 

Agenda 

 
Contact Officer: Steve Culliford 
Tel: 07895 213735 

 

E-mail: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 2 March 2022 
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
A MEETING OF THE 
 

Cabinet 

 
WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY 10 MARCH 2022 AT 6.00 PM 
FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   

 
Members of the Cabinet 

Member Portfolio 

David Rouane (Chair) Leader of the Council 

Robin Bennett (Vice-Chair) Cabinet member for economic development and 
regeneration, and deputy leader (statutory deputy leader 
during the following months: May, July, September, 
November, January and March) 

Maggie Filipova-Rivers 
(Vice-Chair) 

Cabinet member for community wellbeing, and deputy 
leader (statutory deputy leader during the following 
months: April, June, August, October, December and 
February) 

Pieter-Paul Barker Cabinet member for partnership and legal and democratic 

Sue Cooper Cabinet member for environment, climate change and 
nature recovery 

Andrea Powell Cabinet member for corporate services, policy and 
programmes 

Leigh Rawlins Cabinet member for finance and property assets 

Anne-Marie Simpson Cabinet member for planning 
 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read.  For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/c/SouthandValeCommitteeMeetings


  2 

 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC PRESENT 
 

Reports considered with the public present are available on the council’s website. 
 

1  Apologies for absence   
 

To record apologies for absence.   

 
2  Minutes  (Pages 4 - 11) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the public minutes of the Cabinet meeting 
held on 3 February 2022.   

 
3  Declaration of disclosable pecuniary interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and any conflicts of 
interest in respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.   

 
4  Urgent business and chair's announcements   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chair.   

 
5  Public participation   

 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.   

 
 

CABINET DECISIONS 

 

6  Recommendations and updates from other committees  (Page 

12) 
 

To consider the attached recommendations to Cabinet from other committees.   

 
7  Covid response and next steps  (Pages 13 - 40) 

 
To consider the report of the deputy chief executive – transformation and 
operations.   

 
8  Oxfordshire Plan 2050  (Pages 41 - 57) 

 
To consider the report of the Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s programme lead on 
the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.   

 
 



  3 

 

9  Corporate plan performance monitoring report Q2 2021/22  
(Pages 58 - 95) 
 

To consider the head of policy and programmes’ report.   

 
10  Budget monitoring 2021/22   

 
To consider the head of finance’s report (to follow).   

 
11  Exclusion of the Public   

 
To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting 
for the following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access 
to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that:  
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 

3, Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and  
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.   

 
 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC EXCLUDED 

 

12  Minutes  (Pages 96 - 97) 
 

To adopt and sign as a correct record the exempt minutes of the Cabinet meeting 
held on 3 February 2022.   

 
 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

 
 



 

Minutes 

OF A MEETING OF THE 

 

Cabinet 

 
Held on Thursday 3 February 2022 at 6.00 pm 
First Floor Meeting Space, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Cabinet members: Councillors David Rouane (Chair), Robin Bennett, Maggie Filipova-
Rivers, Pieter-Paul Barker, Sue Cooper, Andrea Powell, Leigh Rawlins and Anne-Marie 
Simpson 
Officers: Steve Culliford (Democratic Services Team Leader) and Mark Stone (Chief 
Executive)  
 

Remote attendance:  
Officers: Patrick Arran (Head of Legal and Democratic), Vicky Aston (Planning 
Infrastructure Team Leader), John Backley (Technical Services Manager), Harry 
Barrington-Mountford (Head of Policy and Programmes), James Carpenter (Head of 
Development and Corporate Landlord), Liz Hayden (Head of Housing and Environment), 
Simon Hewings (Head of Finance), Jeremy Lloyd (Broadcasting Officer), Suzanne 
Malcolm (Deputy Chief Executive - Place), William Maxwell (Waste and Recycling Project 
Manager), Donna Ross (Principal Accountant), Cathie Scotting (Major Applications 
Officer), Richard Spraggett (Interim Strategic Finance Manager), and Michelle Wells 
(Insight and Policy Manager) 
Guests: Councillors Sam Casey-Rerhaye and Ian White  
 
 

72 Apologies for absence  
 
None 
 

73 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 2 December 2021, 
and the minutes of the informal meeting of Cabinet members held on 17 December 2021, 
as correct records and agree that the Chair signs them as such.   
 

74 Declaration of disclosable pecuniary interest  
 
None 
 

75 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
None 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 

76 Public participation  
 
Councillor Ian White had registered to speak to the budget item (minute 83 refers).   
 

77 Recommendations and updates from other committees  
 
Cabinet noted the recommendations and updates from other committees since Cabinet’s 
meeting on 2 December 2021.   
 

78 Community infrastructure levy charging schedule and developer 
contributions supplementary planning document  
 
Cabinet considered the head of policy and programmes’ report.  This sought agreement to 
the proposed new community infrastructure levy rates for the district so that a draft 
charging schedule and a revised developer contributions supplementary planning 
document could be published for public consultation.   
 
The report investigated the option of maintaining the current levy rates.  However, the 
Cabinet member for planning explained that the charging schedule needed to be reviewed 
to maximise the effectiveness of the community infrastructure levy in helping to deliver the 
necessary infrastructure to support development across the district.  The Cabinet member 
also pointed to the infrastructure funding gap assessment, and the community 
infrastructure levy viability assessment, both of which were appended to the report.   
 
The report assessed the option of levying different rates for greenfield and brownfield 
developments, which was rejected due to regulatory issues and the complexity and 
associated costs.  Instead, the Cabinet member recommended that the charging schedule 
had three geographical zones for residential development: the southern parishes of the 
district, Didcot and Berinsfield, and the rest of the district.  A map showing these zones 
was included in the appendix to the report.  The proposed charging schedule also 
recommended levy rates for student accommodation and retail development.  There would 
be no levy for offices/industrial development, nor for residential development on strategic 
sites.   
 
Cabinet supported the proposals, believing that they struck the right balance between the 
need to increase the levy and the need for fairness.  The new charging schedule would 
raise additional funds for much needed infrastructure in local communities.  Cabinet also 
welcomed the introduction of three charging zones, with a separate zone for Didcot and 
Berinsfield.   
 
Following any necessary changes required as a result of the consultation responses, 
Cabinet noted that the charging schedule would be submitted for independent 
examination.   
 
RESOLVED to: 

 
(a) approve the proposed new Community Infrastructure Levy rates for public 

consultation, as set out in Table 1 of the head of policy and programmes’ report to 
Cabinet on 3 February 2022;   

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

(b) authorise the head of policy and programmes, in consultation with the Cabinet 
member for planning, to make any necessary further minor changes to the Draft 
Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule and associated maps and the 
Draft Supplementary Planning Document, prior to public consultation;   

 
(c) publish the Draft Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule and draft 

Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document for public consultation 
for a minimum of a four-week period; and   

 
(d) following public consultation, to authorise the head of policy and programmes, in 

consultation with the Cabinet member for planning, consideration of all 
representations made, making any necessary amendments to the Draft Community 
Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule and Draft Supplementary Planning Document.  
The Draft Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule document and 
associated information will then be submitted for independent examination.   

 

79 Car park fees and charges  
 
Cabinet considered the head of development and corporate landlord’s report on the annual 
review of car parking fees and charges.  The Cabinet member with responsibility for car 
parks reported that the proposals set out three options to increase fees and charges.  This 
would increase income, with the intention of covering the council’s car park costs.  The 
review had identified the following options:  
A. increase all fees (for up to two hours and above) by at least 40 pence  
B. extend the parking charge period from 9am-5pm to 8am-6pm Monday to Saturday 

(except Goldsmiths Lane car park in Wallingford)  
C. review season tickets (permits)  
D. no increase to the fees and charges  
 
The Cabinet member dismissed the option of not increasing fees and charges as this 
would not allow the council to cover its costs.  Instead, the Cabinet member recommended 
options A, B and C to Cabinet for implementation on 1 April 2022.   
 
Cabinet agreed with the proposal as this would allow the council to cover its costs and 
help manage its finances.  It was also fairer, as the cost of providing car parks should not 
be subsidised.  Cabinet considered that council tax payers without cars should not have to 
subsidise drivers using the council’s car parks.   
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(a) agree to amend the car parking fees in line with options A, B and C, as set out in 

paragraphs 14 to 26 of the head of development and corporate landlord’s report to 
Cabinet on 3 February 2022;   

 
(b) authorise the head of legal and democratic to prepare and publish any relevant 

documents under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; and  
 
(c) authorise the head of development and corporate landlord to oversee necessary 

communications and consultations and report back to Cabinet if required.   
 
 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



 

80 Climate action plan  
 
Cabinet considered the head of policy and programmes’ report on a climate action plan.  
The report set out the plan’s development process and sought Cabinet’s approval to adopt 
and implement the plan.  The Climate and Ecological Emergencies Advisory Committee 
had recommended the plan’s adoption; the committee’s chair updated Cabinet.  The 
committee’s suggestions had been included in the report.   
 
Cabinet welcomed the plan, noting that it set out how the council would work towards its 
target of being a carbon neutral council by 2025.  It supported the work of the Future 
Oxfordshire Partnership and the work of local environmental groups.  It was a ‘live’ plan, 
which would be updated to adapt to changing circumstances.  A progress monitoring 
report would be produced every quarter and adjustments to the plan would be 
recommended as appropriate.  The plan would be a web-based document to allow for 
timely updates.  Cabinet also welcomed the inclusion of a budget to implement the plan.   
 
Cabinet thanked all councillors and officers involved in the development, monitoring and 
implementation of the plan.   
 
RESOLVED: to note the development of and approve the Climate Action Plan for adoption 

and implementation.   

 

81 Treasury management and investment strategy 2022/23  
 
Cabinet considered the head of finance’s report regarding a treasury management and 
investment strategy for 2022/23.   
 
The Cabinet member for finance reported that several changes were proposed to the 
strategy, including: 

 increases to counterparty limits  

 an increased limit for Short Dated/Ultra Short Dated Bond Funds  

 inclusion of bonds with the existing limits for corporate bonds  

 an increase to the maximum portfolio percentage to 100 per cent for local authority 
and UK Government deposits  

 an increase to the portfolio limit for deposits under one year  

 a reduction in the maturity limit for local authority deposits  

 removal of the non-treasury management property-related investment category  

 enabling deposits to be placed with foreign financial institutions  

 an increase to the variable interest rate exposure prudential indicator limit to reflect 
the increased level of cash balances and to allow greater use of funds with variable 
rate returns  

 
The Joint Audit and Governance Committee had supported the strategy; Cabinet 
concurred as the revised strategy would allow the council greater flexibility.   
 
RECOMMENDED to Council to:  

 
(a) approve the treasury management strategy 2022/23, as set out in appendix A to 

the head of finance’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2022;  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 

(b) approve the prudential indicators and limits for 2022/23 to 2024/25, as set out in 
appendix A to the report;   

 
(c) approve the annual investment strategy 2022/23 set out in appendix A to the report, 

and the lending criteria detailed in table 6.  
 

82 Capital strategy 2022/23 - 2031/32  
 
Cabinet considered the head of finance’s report on a capital strategy to cover the period 
2022/23 to 2031/32.  The report requested Cabinet to recommend Council to approve the 
capital strategy.  The strategy provided a framework to the council’s approach to capital 
spending, based on the council’s corporate strategy, and was linked to the council’s 
corporate objectives, medium-term financial strategy, and management of projects and 
programmes.   
 
The Cabinet member for finance reported that the key changes to the strategy broadened 
the areas where capital investment could be considered, including: 

 property investments – to maximise the use and value of council owned assets to 
support council services, or for regeneration purposes to deliver a wider social or 
community benefit   

 loans to companies and other organisations to support the delivery of the council’s 
corporate objectives   

 renewable energy schemes to support delivery of the council’s climate action plan 
priorities   

 flexible use of capital receipts to identify revenue activity which, under guidance 
issued by the Secretary of State, was eligible to be funded using capital receipts 
rather than revenue resources   

 
The Cabinet member reported that in all cases investment would need to be within the 
council’s legal powers, be proportionate to the council’s financial standing, and support the 
council’s corporate objectives.  Investment could not result in commercial gain.   
 
Cabinet supported the strategy as it would allow the council greater investment 
opportunities to raise income.   
 
RECOMMENDED to Council to:  

 
(a) approve the capital strategy 2022/23 to 2031/32, contained in the appendix to the 

head of finance’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2022; and  
 

(b) agree the strategy for flexible use of capital receipts, which is contained as annex 1 
of the capital strategy.   

 

83 Revenue budget 2022/23 and capital programme 2022/23 - 2026/27  
 
Cabinet considered the head of finance’s report on the budget for financial year 2022/23.  
The report included a draft revenue budget, a capital programme for the period 2022/23 to 
2026/27, the prudential indicators, and a medium term financial plan covering 2022/23 to 
2026/27.  Cabinet was asked to recommend the report to the Council meeting on 17 
February 2022.   
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



 

Councillor Ian White, Chair of the Scrutiny Committee, addressed Cabinet on the process 
for the committee to consider the draft budget.  This year the committee was trying a new 
method.  It would meet on 7 February to consider Cabinet’s budget proposals.  The 
committee would consider whether to make any recommendations to Cabinet before the 
Council meeting on 17 February.  For this purpose, the leader had set a reserve date for a 
Cabinet meeting on 8 February to consider any recommendations from Scrutiny 
Committee and to consider whether Cabinet should amend its budget proposals to 
Council.  Councillor White thanked the leader, Cabinet members and the head of finance 
for their understanding and assistance, and reported that the success or otherwise of this 
trial would be reviewed at a later date.   
 
The Cabinet member for finance introduced the report.  The budget proposals would help 
chart the council back to a more stable financial position.  The council’s finances were 
recovering from the position the administration had inherited at the district council elections 
in 2019.  The council’s finances were also recovering from the Covid-19 pandemic, which 
still was ongoing.  The Cabinet member for finance praised his predecessor for work in 
starting this recovery.   
 
This year Cabinet was keen to do more to implement the corporate plan and focus on 
financial sustainability.  To assist, a thorough review of the council’s budget expenditure 
had been carried out.  This had achieved substantial revenue base budget savings.  He 
thanked officers for their work.  This had been helped by the council’s accountancy team 
returning in-house.  He believed that many of the decisions made by the council since 
2019 were beginning to bear fruit, as reflected by the significant savings in the base 
budget.  There was now more income and less expenditure, all without having to cut 
services provided to local residents.   
 
The Cabinet member reported that this year’s budget had been prepared at a time when 
the council faced key financial challenges.  The council tax in 2021/22 was the eighth 
lowest in the country for a shire district council and significantly below the national 
average, despite South Oxfordshire district being in the expensive South East.  The 
council was restricted in how much it could increase its council tax.  Also, the council had 
not benefitted from the business rates’ retention scheme.  Although it had benefitted in the 
past from the new homes bonus scheme, the continuation of this funding was under 
review by the government.  The result of this was that the cost of running the council 
exceeded the grant it received from government.  The revenue budget set for 2021/22 had 
predicted that the use of the council’s reserves that was unsustainable over the medium to 
long term.  Following the thorough review of the base budget, the medium term financial 
plan now predicted a significantly better position with less reliance on reserves.  The 
transformation activities planned during 2022/23 were central to tackling the budget gap 
for future years.   
 
The budget proposed no cuts to services and included revenue provision to support the 
council’s corporate plan priorities in climate action, nature recovery, and community 
wellbeing.  Council tax was proposed to increase by £5 for a Band D property—the 
maximum allowed.  However, there was no long long-term promise of a funding framework 
from the government, and the current settlement was only for one year.  The medium term 
financial plan showed a fundamental structuring towards sound financial planning, a 
transformation from previous years, and included an element for exit costs at the close of 
the current corporate service contract, funded through capital reserves.  The capital 
programme included several new schemes to be funded from the community infrastructure 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



 

levy income, and also income from section 106 receipts to support affordable housing 
schemes.  The Cabinet member moved the recommendations as set out in the report.   
 
Cabinet members thanked the Cabinet member for finance, and the head of finance and 
his team, for their work in preparing the budget.  Cabinet members highlighted several 
elements of the budget proposals: a change in emphasis towards greater creativity 
resulting in positive change.  The council had learned important lessons form the Covid-19 
pandemic; officers and councillors had adapted well to support the local community.  It 
was important that strategies were developed to support the community, and that the 
council continued to support the voluntary and community sector, where their work 
matched the council’s corporate plan objectives.  Funding in the budget to support the 
climate action plan work, nature recovery and new housing was welcomed also.  Cabinet 
was pleased with the inclusion of capital projects to be funded by the community 
infrastructure levy.  The decision to work on a joint local plan, with Vale of White Horse 
District Council, and to develop new offices shared with the Vale, would save significant 
sums.  The office development would also help with the regeneration of an important site 
in Didcot.   
 
In summary, Cabinet considered that the budget proposals represented an impressive 
transformation.  In-sourcing of service provision had helped this process, as had the work 
to review the council’s base budget requirement.  The move to new offices and the 
preparation of a joint local plan would save significant costs.  The budget would ensure 
financial sustainability and showed a positive direction of travel.  There would be no cuts to 
services in 2022/23.  Cabinet supported the budget proposals.   
 
RECOMMENDED to Council to:  
 
(a) set the revenue budget for 2022/23, as set out in appendix A.1 to the head of 

finance’s report to Cabinet on 3 February 2022;  
 
(b) approve the capital programme for 2022/23 to 2026/27, as set out in appendix D.1 to 

the report, together with the capital programme changes as set out in appendix D.2 
and appendix D.3 to the report;  

 
(c) set the council’s prudential limits, as listed in appendix E to the report;  
 
(d) approve the medium-term financial plan to 2026/27, as set out in appendix F to the 

report;  
 
(e) allocate £500,000 to fund the Communities Capital and Revenue grant scheme;  
 
(f) ask officers to review the Medium-Term Financial Strategy following the 

announcement by the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
of changes to the council’s future funding streams; and  

 
RESOLVED to:  
 
(g) agree that the Cabinet member for finance, in conjunction with the head of finance, 

may make minor adjustments to the report and the prudential indicators, should they 
prove necessary prior to its submission to Council on 17 February 2022.   

 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



 

84 Future provision of external audit services  
 
Cabinet considered the head of finance’s report on the need to appoint external auditors 
for the five-year period from April 2023.   
 
In 2018, the council had opted into the ‘appointing person’ national auditor appointment 
arrangements, established by the Public Sector Audit Appointments for the period covering 
the accounts for 2018/19 to 2022/23.  The same organisation was undertaking a 
procurement for the next appointing period, covering audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28, and 
had invited the council to opt into these procurement arrangements again.  The options 
open to the council were to:   

1. arrange its own procurement and appointment of external auditors; or  
2. join the national collective scheme administered by the Public Sector Audit 

Appointments, a decision needed by 11 March 2022.   
 
The Cabinet member for finance recommended option 2, as had the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee.  Cabinet noted that the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Local Government Association (LGA) had also 
recommended this option.  Cabinet concurred, believing that this would bring clear 
advantages of economies of scale.   
 
RECOMMENDED to Council to:  
 
(a) accept Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led option 

for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government and police 
bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023; and  

 
(b) authorise the head of finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor 

appointments for the provision of external audit services starting with the audit of the 
2023/24 accounts.   

 

85 Exclusion of the Public  
 
RESOLVED: to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the 
following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that:  
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and 
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.   
 

86 Future waste services  
 
Cabinet authorised officers to make arrangements for the future of waste services.   
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



Recommendations and updates 

from other committees  

to Cabinet on 10 March 2022 

 

 

Below are updates from other committees to the Cabinet meeting on Thursday 10 
March.   
 
 

Scrutiny Committee 
 
The committee met on 7 February to discuss the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 and the quarter 
2 performance monitoring report.   
 
1. Oxfordshire Plan 2050  

(i) the committee noted  

 the summary results from the recent regulation 18 (part 2) consultation;  

 the revised scope of the Oxfordshire Plan, with clarification over its 
relationship to city and district Local Plans and supporting evidence 
base;  

 the next steps of the Oxfordshire Plan process;  
(ii) the committee resolved to recommend the following to Cabinet: 

 recommend the adoption of the revised Statement of Community 
Involvement, subject to approval at the cabinets of the five Oxfordshire 
councils; and 

(iii) the committee added on a further recommendation to the Cabinet 
member for Planning to obtain greater clarity about the nature of the 
consultation responses to uncover any potential conflicts of interest and to 
respond to the committee’s concerns in writing. 

 
2. Quarter 2 corporate plan performance monitoring report – The Scrutiny 

Committee noted the Q2 performance monitoring report.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Democratic Services 
democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk  
10 March 2022   
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6

mailto:democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk


Cabinet Report 

  

Report of Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and Operations  

Author: Adrianna Partridge 

Telephone: 07717 355143 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422485 

E-mail: adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: N/A 

 

Cabinet member responsible:  

Cllr Maggie Filipova-Rivers (South) 

Maggie.Filipova-Rivers@southoxon.gov.uk Mob: 07850 141623 

Cllr Helen Pighills (Vale) 

helen.pighills@whitehorsedc.gov.uk Tel: 01235 534446 

To: CABINET 

Date: South: 10 March 2022, Vale: 8 March 2022  

 

 

Covid response update and next steps 

Recommendations 

(a) That Cabinet note the councils Covid-19 community support response activity to date 
and the agreed staff structure to continue the response and progress the recovery 
programmes.  

(b) That Cabinet supports the principles outlined within the attached Oxfordshire Covid-19 
Recovery and Renewal Framework.  

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To update Cabinet on the councils Covid-19 community and business support 
response activity to date, and on the agreed staff structure to continue the councils’ 
response and to progress the recovery programmes.  

2. That Cabinet supports the principles outlined within the attached Oxfordshire Covid-19 
Recovery and Renewal Framework. 

Corporate Plan Measures  

3. This work supports delivery of a large number of corporate plan measures contained in 
the following themes; for South ‘improved economic and community wellbeing’ and 
Vale ‘working in partnership’ and ‘building healthy communities’. In addition, the 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7

mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Maggie.Filipova-Rivers@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:helen.pighills@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


councils along with many other public sector bodies were given considerable additional 
responsibilities to support communities under the public sector duty to support the 
national effort through the pandemic. 

Background 

4. The councils’ response to supporting residents and businesses through the pandemic, 
involved establishing a South and Vale Community Support Hub in June 2020, and the 
refocussing of council services to ensure that support could be effectively provided to 
residents and businesses throughout the pandemic.   

5. Initially support for residents was very practical around contact, the collection of 
prescriptions and delivery of food parcels to members of the community who in the 
main were classed as clinically vulnerable or clinically extremely vulnerable (CEV) and 
had been advised to shield to limit their exposure to the Covid-19 virus by government. 
Grants to businesses were also issued at pace, to assist them to operate under Covid-
19 restrictions.  As the pandemic has progressed, the councils’ response has widened 
to a number of support activities. 

6. A summary of the support activities undertaken is below, with more detail presented in 
Appendix One, Two and Three. These activities were delivered by South and Vale 
staff in co-ordination with partners across the Oxfordshire system.   

 Grant schemes: researching, designing, establishing and administering the 
following grant schemes for individuals, families, Voluntary and Community Sector 
organisations and businesses: 

o Emergency Assistance Grants (EAG) 

o Winter Support Grant (WSG) 

o Covid Support Grant (CSG) 

o Household Support Grant (HSG) 

o Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) 

o Local Restrictions Support Grant (LRSG) 

o Omicron Hospitality, Leisure & accommodation Grant (OHLG)  

o Test and Trace Support Payments (TTSP)  

o Covid-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF)  

o Covid-19 emergency councillor grant (South and Vale) 

o Covid-19 councillor grants (South only)  

o Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Transportation Grant 

o Co-ordination of Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF) budget and 
bids 

 Voucher support - distributing supermarket vouchers for test and trace support 
payments (TTSP) recipients. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



 Welfare check calls - undertaking outbound calls to TTSP recipients and welfare 
check calls to those self- isolating and dealing with inbound referrals needing further 
support - calls, emails, webform. 

 Community site visits – to support the national and local approach for the test and 
trace system and to check that CEV residents who had not responded to previous 
telephone contacts to offer support were ok. 

 Food parcel provision - proving food parcels to support vulnerable residents. 

 System co-ordination – organising mutual aid staffing requests to support health 
partners in the delivery of the vaccination programme.   

 Quarantine Hotels - transporting PCR tests to/from quarantine hotels. 

 Research and development – leading for Oxfordshire to support the system wide 
CEV recovery programme. 

 Community food network - liaison with network partners and input into strategy 
work. 

 Proactive communications - campaigns ran throughout the year supporting the 
practical response work of teams and engaged residents with Covid safety and 
support messages. 
 

Current and future working arrangements 

7. The councils’ role has evolved over time and currently the community support hub 
mainly provides direct support via a range of grant funded schemes to those struggling 
financially to afford food and basic supplies such as heating and power. Also, staff 
provide signposting advice and guidance to anyone in the community who asks for it 
regarding a wide range of issues such as wellbeing, mental health and financial 
support.  

8. To support the national test and trace initiative Environmental Health staff undertake 
visits to those who have tested positive to encourage compliance with quarantine 
obligations and request the individuals make contact with the Oxfordshire test and 
trace team (OxLOCT). They have also conducted proactive district town reviews to 
check for general compliance levels and have provided guidance to businesses for the 
county wide ventilation project. Support for businesses is currently in place through the 
provision of advice and guidance, the discretionary Winter Support Grant and Covid 
safe networking events.  Additional support for small businesses using COMF funding 
to provide an e-commerce platform is planned shortly. 

9. Initially the South and Vale community hub was established up to the end of March 
2021, then this was extended to the end of March 2022.  However, given the ongoing 
nature of the pandemic and negative impacts on vulnerable residents, the structure as 
set out in Appendix Four has been extended to the end of March 2023 using COMF 
funding. Support capacity for other teams will be met by a combination of existing 
resources and additional staff funded through COMF. 

10. The attached Oxfordshire Covid-19 Recovery and Renewal Framework as set out in 
Appendix Five sets out an approach for efficiently and effectively co-ordinating 
resources as appropriate, for recovery and renewal activities across the county.  The 
framework for recovery and renewal is arranged around three key aims: 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 Consolidating recovery and building resilience: Protecting key services and 
keeping social life and the economy open by sustaining our system response 
to COVID-19 and working together on addressing new pressures. This includes 
changes to service delivery as well as ways of working e.g. engagement with 
Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS), businesses and key partners. 

 Addressing the unequal impact of COVID-19: Proactively using qualitative 
and quantitative data and insight to identify the groups most impacted across a 
range of cross-cutting issues, beyond the immediate impact on health, and 
tackling impact with a focus on the total strengths and needs of individuals and 
families 

 Supporting renewal: Identifying new approaches and activities underpinned 
by the lessons we have learnt to date, building Oxfordshire’s resilience, not 
only against future waves of the pandemic but also in terms of economic and 
community resilience to wider societal challenges including climate change and 
ecological impacts. 

11. Across the three themes, two cross cutting priorities are recognised as needing to 
inform recovery and renewal thinking across the county: 

 Climate change action 
Championing climate action across the County as we work together to 
address climate change, build climate resilience and support nature 
recovery.   
 

 Tackling inequality 
Driving equal access and delivery of support across all local communities, 
narrowing health, social and educational inequalities and tackling poverty.  
 

12. By supporting the Oxfordshire framework, system partners are committing to 
collaborate and co-ordinate where it is beneficial to do so, and therefore drive delivery 
through partnership working: 

 Support for the framework will ensure continued system partnership working, 
established during Covid-19 and extending to recovery and renewal initiatives. 

 Through partnership working, it has and will further enable aligned allocation 
and delivery of grant funding as quickly and efficiently as possible. 

 System oversight will facilitate collaboration and wherever possible reduce 
duplication of delivery efforts and initiatives. 

 It will enable Oxfordshire partners to work together to recover from the impacts 
of COVID and implement changes in the light of what we have learnt for our 
communities, organisations and partnerships. 

13. The framework has been scripted by Oxfordshire County Council, but developed in 
partnership through the Silver system group, which includes representatives from 
public sector partners across Oxfordshire, and has been endorsed by the Oxfordshire 
system chiefs group.  

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



14. In response to the framework being supported by Cabinets, officers will review existing 
corporate plan activities, and will assess how they align to the Oxfordshire recovery 
themes identified.  

15. To ensure efficient use of resources and avoid duplication it is proposed to report 
progress on the councils’ recovery and renewal actions, by expanding the current 
Covid-19 Response and Recovery theme in the established quarterly corporate plan 
reporting. 

Options 

16. There is no legal obligation to support the principles of the Oxfordshire Recovery and 
Renewal Framework, however doing so is a positive action demonstrating the councils’ 
commitment to working with other public sector partners and the voluntary sector to 
support residents and businesses as they continue to adapt and live with Covid.   

Climate and ecological impact implications 

17. All activities included in the existing corporate plan delivery plans have been assessed 
for their climate and ecological impact, and there are not considered to be any 
additional adverse impacts by supporting the principles within the Oxfordshire 
Recovery and Renewal Framework. 

Financial Implications 

18. Any additional activities undertaken as a result of support for the principles of the 
recovery and renewal framework will be fully grant funded or covered by existing 
resources as set out in the Corporate Plan delivery plans. Where resources are not 
available, activities will not be undertaken.  Therefore, it is considered that there are no 
additional financial implications by supporting the principles of this framework.  

Equalities and Diversity implications 

19. The Recovery and Renewal framework outlines the unequal impact of COVID and 
notes the need for additional analysis to fully understand the direct and indirect 
impacts.  Activity already underway through the Oxfordshire system, for example on 
health inequality, vaccine outreach and support to homeless individuals, is directly 
addressing equality and inclusion as it relates to COVID-19.  In the development and 
delivery of the themes set out within the framework and the progression of partnership 
planning and delivery activity, the assessment of the equality impact will be required.  

Legal Implications 

20. Supporting the principles of the Oxfordshire Recovery and Renewal Framework neither 
imposes nor infers any additional obligations on the council and it is therefore 
considered that there are no legal implications. 

Risks 

21. The only risk considered pertinent to supporting the principles or otherwise of this 
framework would be a possible reputational one amongst partner organisations were 
the councils not to support the framework and not take advantage of the opportunities 
and synergies that a partnership approach provides.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



Other implications 

22. There are not considered to be any other implications. 

Conclusion 

23. That Cabinet note the councils Covid-19 community support response activity to date 
and the agreed staff structure to continue the response and progress the recovery 
programmes, and that Cabinet supports the principles outlined within the attached 
Oxfordshire Covid-19 Recovery and Renewal Framework. 

 

Background Papers 

 Appendix One – Community Hub activity statistics to December 2021 (see below) 

 Appendix Two – South business support grant activity statistics to December 2021 

 Appendix Three – Vale business support grant activity statistics to December 2021 

 Appendix Four – Proposed Community Support Hub Structure 

 Appendix Five – Oxfordshire Recovery and Renewal Framework (separately 
attached) 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



Appendix One – Communications, Community and CSV support activity statistics to December 2021 
 

Activity Dates South Volumes South Amounts Vale Volumes Vale Amounts 

Emergency Assistance Grant – VCS* organisations October 2020 - March 2021 12 £49,343 12 £48,709 

Emergency Assistance Grant - individuals 
September 2020 - March 
2021 111 £26,280 148 £23,330 

Winter Support Grant January - April 2021 496 households £146,221 473 households £141,517 

Covid Support Grant May - June 2021 59 households £15,780 65 households £15,245 

VCS Transportation Grant April - May 2021 10 VCS £74,000 7 VCS £62,363 

Household Support Grant December 2021 106 households £29,025 322 households £103,095 

Supermarket vouchers for TTSP** recipients August - December 2021 88 £13,750 142 £22,825 

Outbound calls to TTSP recipients August - December 2021  141 n/a 201 n/a 

Total referrals dealt with - number of enquiries 
needing further support January - December 2021 936 419 1091 533 

Inbound enquiries - calls, emails, webform January - December 2021 139 n/a 161 n/a 

Food parcels to support vulnerable residents January - December 2021 60 n/a 92 n/a 

Test and Trace support payment August 2021 – January 2022 
1193 applications 
635 valid claims £317,500 

1422 applications 
721 claims £360,500 

Restart Grants April 2021 - January 2022 671 claims £5,629,365 472 claims £4,002,021 

Outbound self-isolation calls made March - December 2021 4,441 calls made 

Staffing support for health partners   May 2021 14 staffing positions filled over 4 days 
Holding hotels PCR** tests collected / delivered to 
test site September - December 2021 26 journeys to collect tests from holding hotels and deliver to test site 

Test and Trace – Local contract tracing door knocks 20 Oct 2020 – 19 Jan 2022 1427 individual visits completed to address across the districts 
Inspections of businesses regarding compliance with 
Covid-19 restrictions.  

Mar 2020-Dec 2021 South - 104 n/a Vale- 83 n/a 

Covid-19 Outbreak investigations (with OCC public 
health). 

Mar 2020-Dec 2021 South - 15 n/a Vale - 27 n/a 

Investigations into allegations against businesses of 
non- compliance with Covid-19 restrictions. 

Mar 2020-Dec 2021 South - 380 n/a Vale - 235 n/a 

Queries from businesses asking for advice and 
guidance regarding covid compliance  

Mar 2020-Dec 2021 South - 315 n/a Vale - 211 n/a 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7



Offering free Food hygiene / H&S training to 
businesses to aid recovery 

January 2022 – February 
2022 

841 course licence logins have been issued and 153 courses completed (South 
and Vale) 

Completed food safety inspections.  March 2020 – January 2022 1544 (South and Vale) 
Pavement licences implemented as a brand-new 
system and processed.  March 2020 – January 2022 

70 applications in total – 5 refused and 3 withdrawn, 62 issued (South and 
Vale) 

Premises/street trader inspections to assist with 
compliance March 2020 – January 2022 80 (South and Vale) 

Provided face coverings and stickers for inside taxis. March 2020 – January 2022 n/a 

On 02/03/2020, ED had 483 SVBS newsletter subscribers. As of 31/01/2022, the newsletter has 2,387 subscribers. An increase of 394%. 
Over the course of the pandemic, ED have issued more than 90 newsletters, with specific features on availability of business grant programmes in 50 editions. This 
information is also shared through our Facebook and Twitter social channels, where SVBS hold combined follower numbers of 1,700. 
Business engagement with the newsletter remains strong, for the most recent quarterly period of 1 Oct 2022 to 31 December 2022, 13 editions were sent, totalling 
29,335 sends, 15,250 opens and 3,301 clickthrough’s. The open rate of more than 50% exceeds the industry trend for an average rate of 17-28%. 
For the latest quarterly period of 1 Oct 2022 to 31 December 2022, the SVBS website received 11469 visits (please note, the website underwent a refresh in October, 
this statistic is for Nov / Dec only). Within January, this spiked to 2,151 new users within the month, with 15,826 page views, this coincided with the launch of new covid 
funding scheme, demonstrating there continues to be strong demand for financial support for businesses. 
High Street and Public Spaces Social Distance 
Promotion and Covid Safety Campaign #DoYourBit 
 March - December 2021 

Campaign costs split evenly across South and Vale from COMF funding 
Total COMF spend of £83,701 from March – December 2021 

We worked closely with teams including Business Support, Active Communities and in partnership with eight town councils in our districts to help us during our 
campaign.  They towns were: 

  

Didcot 
Henley 
Thame 
Wallingford  

Abingdon 
Botley 
Faringdon 
Wantage  

Graphics for #DoYourBit social media posts and 
banners designed (x8 towns in 3 sizes for Facebook, 
Instagram and Twitter) April 2021 12  12  
Social media posts scheduled with #DoYourBit to 
promote free resources for businesses etc 
 April - July 2021 20  20  

Town centre banners March 2021 17  10  

Banners for playgrounds March  17  18  

Banners for open spaces and parks in towns April 2021 onwards 19  23  

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 7



Posters (A3 and A4) for town centre businesses and 
districtwide downloadable from website 

o Generic 

o High street 

o Hairdressers 

o Pub 

o Café  

o Shop 

o Town hall or community centre 

o Public toilets 
April 2021 16  16  

Beer mats and coasters for cafes and pubs for town 
centres and given out at food outlets by Covid 
Marshalls and Food Safety inspectors April 2021 1,250  1,000  
Table wraparound display/signage for cafes and pubs 
for town centres and given out at food outlets by 
Covid Marshalls and Food Safety inspectors April 2021 1,600  2,600  
Venue banners for council community and leisure 
centres May 2021 8  5  

Market day lamppost wraparounds for town centres April 2021 38  60  
Park banners – smaller for parishes 
Playground banners – smaller for parishes May 2021 14  5  
Posters for venues for guesthouses, hotels and B&Bs – 
downloadable format May 2021 1 design  1 design  

‘it’s not over yet’ themed billboard large poster sites 
and bus stops campaign x3 designs  

 
June – September 2021 

Didcot Park Way 
x 11 posters 
X1 Wallingford at 
Beechcroft 
development   

X3 Botley bus stops 
X2 Wantage 
X1 Faringdon  

‘it’s not over yet’ themed adverts in Herald 
newspaper series over 4 weeks 7, 14, 21, 28 July 2021 

Wallingford, 
Didcot x4 ads   

Abingdon, Wantage 
& Grove x4 ads  

Outdoor pools and splashpad promo banners with 
covid safety messages July 2021 Abingdon x7  Wallingford x8  
* Voluntary and community sector, ** Test and trace support payment, *** Polymerase chain reaction (laboratory) test. 

 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix Two – South business support grant activity statistics to December 2021 
 

                          

  South Oxfordshire District Council               

                          
      ALLOCATION   NO. IN SCOPE   VALUE IN SCOPE   NO. PAID   TOTAL PAID   
                          

  SBGF/RHLGF £27,494,000   2,181   £27,645,000   1,993   £25,630,000   

                          

  LADGF   £1,157,250           199   £1,070,000   

                          

  LRSG   £16,223,863           4,287   £10,937,436   

                          

  CSP   £102,400           57   £57,000   

                          

  RESTART £7,500,150           671   £5,629,365   

                          

  OMICRON £1,482,084                   

          AVAILABLE   SPENT           

  ARG   £5,868,915   £1,589,996   72.91%   1,254   £4,278,919   

                          
    Initial £2,841,140                   
    Top Up 1 (Jan 21) £1,261,900                   
    Top Up 2 (May-July 21) £1,415,700                   
    Top Up 3 (Jan 22) £350,175                   
                          

  TOTAL GRANTS £59,828,662           8,461   £47,602,720   

                          

 
SBGF/RHLGF – Small Business Grant Fund/ Retail Hospitality and leisure Grant Fund 
LADGF – Local Authority Discretionary Grant Fund 
LRSG – Local Restrictions Support Fund 
CSP – Covid Support Payment 

RESTART – Restart grant 
OMICRON - Retail Hospitality and leisure Grant Fund 
ARG – Additional Restrictions Grant 
 

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix Three – Vale business support grant activity statistics to December 2021 
 

                          

  Vale of White Horse District Council               

                          
      ALLOCATION   NO. IN SCOPE   VALUE IN SCOPE   NO. PAID   TOTAL PAID   
                          

  SBGF/RHLGF £17,810,000   1,468   £18,310,000   1,350   £17,025,000   

                          

  LADGF   £747,000           98   £545,000   

                          

  LRSG   £10,998,894           2,951   £7,269,783   

                          

  CSP   £64,000           40   £40,000   

                          

  RESTART £5,202,126           471   £4,002,021   

                          

  OMICRON £1,104,075                   

          AVAILABLE   SPENT           

  ARG   £5,271,443   £1,292,045   75.49%   809   £3,979,398   

                          
    Initial £2,720,140                   
    Top Up 1 (Jan 21) £1,208,157                   
    Top Up 2 (May-July 21) £1,081,150                   
    Top Up 3 (Jan 22) £261,996                   
                          

  TOTAL GRANTS £41,197,538           5,719   £32,861,202   

                          
 

SBGF/RHLGF – Small Business Grant Fund/ Retail Hospitality and leisure Grant Fund 
LADGF – Local Authority Discretionary Grant Fund 
LRSG – Local Restrictions Support Fund 
CSP – Covid Support Payment 

RESTART – Restart grant 
OMICRON - Retail Hospitality and leisure Grant Fund 
ARG – Additional Restrictions Grant 
 

  

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix Four – Proposed Community Support Hub Structure 
 
 
 

Hendriette Knouwds 

Connector Supervisor  

1 FTE (March 2023) 

(Seconded) 

Grover Hall 

Logistics Supervisor 

1 FTE (March 2023) 

(Seconded) 

Victoria Youds 

Community Connector  

1 FTE (March 2023) 

(Seconded)  

Emily Knight 

Community Connector 

1 FTE (March 2023) 

Sina Leasuasu 

Community Connector 

1 FTE (March 2023) 

Vacant 

Community Connector 
(Recovery) 

1FTE (March 2023) 

Volunteer Response 

flexible staff resource to 
respond to local outbreaks 

and additional waves. 

Supporting Teams: 
Assurance, Communications, Community Enablement, Customer Service, Environmental Health, HR, IT, Policy & Insight 

Louise Birt 

Community Hub Team Leader 

1 FTE (March 2023) 

(Seconded) 

Note: Community Hub posts up to Team Leader are fully funded via COMF. 

Jayne Bolton 

Community Wellbeing 
Manager 

Recovery Lead 

Ben Coleman 

Programmes Manager 

Response and Triage Lead 

Adrianna Partridge 

Deputy-CEO (Silver Lead) 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 7



 

1 

 

COVID 19: Oxfordshire System Recovery and Renewal Framework 
 

Report by Robin Rogers, OCC programme director Covid-19 
Response 
 

Executive Summary 

 
1. Effective partnership working across Oxfordshire has been at the heart of the 

local system response to the COVID-19 pandemic. As the national and local 
picture improves, system partners have developed a shared framework for 
recovery and renewal. This framework sets overarching common ambitions for 
the issues and themes that will be worked on together as organisations and the 
community learn from the pandemic. It aims to ensure that Oxfordshire is best 
placed to recover from the immediate impacts of the pandemic, to support the 
long-term renewal of communities and places, and enhance our joint impact on 
national and international challenges.  

Background 

 
2. System partners have worked closely together since early in 2020 to deliver a 

joined-up response across the board spectrum of COVID-19 impact. Partners 
have developed joint structures to support those required to stay at home, to 
encourage and enforce adherence to COVID restrictions, to monitor and contain 
the spread of the virus and to maintain the continuity of essential services. Joint 
responses have managed the impact on health and social care services and 
worked closely with education providers. From late 2020 and into 2021, joint 
activity delivered community testing and latterly the successful role out of the 
vaccination programme. Partnership interventions have also sought to address 
the secondary impacts of the pandemic for individuals, communities and 
businesses through joint work on community engagement, business support, 
financial hardship and economic recovery. 
 

3. Throughout 2021, Oxfordshire’s system-wide COVID-19 response has 
continued to focus on the immediate health impacts of the pandemic, containing 
outbreaks and minimising the transmission of the virus in the community. In line 
with the easing of most legal restrictions during the summer of 2021, system-
partners revisited the long-term impact of COVID-19 and reviewed the shared 
focus of planning for recovery and renewal.   
 

4. The pandemic has led to economic, community and service impact that has yet 
to be fully understood at the system level. However, it can clearly be seen that 
existing inequalities and service and community pressures have been amplified, 
with likely long-term impacts. As with many pre-existing challenges, the impact 
and effective responses will often lie across several agencies and sectors.  
 

5. To coordinate and prioritise COVID and post-COVID activity, and prioritise 
resource allocation, partners agreed to develop a set of joint themes for the next 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



2 

 

phase in the pandemic period and to bring together shared system priorities and 
joint ambitions for recovery and renewal in an overarching framework.  
 

6. This framework was initially drafted during late 2021 through engagement with 
system partners, drawing on priorities, impact analysis and community insight 
held within individual organisations and thematic partnerships. Progress was 
paused during December to allow partners to focus on the enhanced response 
to the Omicron variant and the framework is now being brought forward for 
formal support and incorporation into partnership planning for the new business 
year.  

Introducing the framework 

 
7. The intention of agreeing a joint framework is to provide a mechanism for driving 

systems working on renewal and an ongoing structure for collaboration.  It will 
enable us to better coordinate how we recover from the impacts of COVID and 
implement changes in the light of what we have learnt for our communities, 
organisations and partnerships. 
 

8. At the time of writing, the significant increase in infection rates related to the 
Omicron variant is waning. While service pressure in health and social care 
remains significant and the impact on educational settings remains high, system 
partners are stepping back from the period of most concern. Nevertheless, the 
potential for changes in the nature of the pandemic and for service disruption 
generated by the cumulative risks associated with COVID’s direct and indirect 
impact remains. Therefore, while planning for the future, a level of COVID 
readiness will need to be maintained. Reflecting this position, the framework for 
recovery and renewal is arranged around three key aims: 
 

• Consolidating recovery and building resilience: Protecting key 
services and keeping social life and the economy open by sustaining 
our system response to COVID-19 and working together on 
addressing new pressures. This includes changes to service delivery 
as well as ways of working eg. engagement with Voluntary and 
Community Sector (VCS), businesses and key partners. 
 

• Addressing the unequal impact of COVID-19: Proactively using 
qualitative and quantitative data and insight to identify the groups 
most impacted across a range of cross-cutting issues, beyond the 
immediate impact on health,  and tackling impact with a focus on the 
total strengths and needs of individuals and families. 

 

• Supporting renewal: Identifying new approaches and activities 
underpinned by the lessons we have learnt to date, building 
Oxfordshire’s resilience, not only against future waves of the 
pandemic but also in terms of economic and community resilience to 
wider societal challenges including climate change and ecological 
impacts. 

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



3 

 

9. Across the three themes, two cross cutting priorities are recognised as needing 
to inform recovery and renewal thinking across the county: 
 

• Climate change action 
Championing climate action across the County as we work together 
to address climate change, build climate resilience and support 
nature recovery.   
 

• Tackling inequality 
Driving equal access and delivery of support across all local 
communities, narrowing health, social and educational inequalities 
and tackling poverty.  

 
10. This document is necessarily a start point for longer term planning. Its aim is to 

act as a bridge between current partnership COVID response, delivery and 
planning, and future longer-term planning across the partnership agenda. It 
seeks to bring together, rather than replace, existing county-wide plans and 
strategies and ensure that recovery and renewal activities are incorporated into 
the wider partnership context.  

Next Steps 

 
11. The Oxfordshire COVID response system comprises health, local authority, 

education and community safety participants alongside representatives of 
strategic partnerships, including OxLEP. These partners connect to a broader 
network of key deliverers including schools, business, town and parish councils 
and the voluntary and community sector. Core system partners have agreed to 
support the joint Recovery and Renewal framework starting with local 
authorities, where recommendations to support the framework will be made to 
the relevant decision makers during March 2022. Significant engagement with 
system partners has already taken place.  
 

Equality & Inclusion Implications 

 
12. The Recovery and Renewal framework outlines the unequal impact of COVID 

and notes the need for detailed analysis to fully understand the direct and 
indirect impacts in the short, medium and long term. Activity already underway 
under system structures, for example on health inequality, vaccine outreach and 
support to homeless individuals, is directly addressing equality and inclusion as 
it relates to COVID-19. In the development and delivery of the ambitions set out 
within the framework and the progression of new partnership planning and 
activity, detailed equality impact will be required building on the new learning 
and impact from the COVID-19 period supported through re-analysis of data 
and information, for example within the updated Joint Strategy Needs 
Assessment and in the annual report of the Director of Public Health. 

  

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 7



5 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



6 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 7



7 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



8 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 32

Agenda Item 7



9 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



10 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



11 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



12 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



13 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



14 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



15 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



16 

 

 

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



                                                                             www.futureoxfordshirepartnership.org 

 

To:                     Cabinets and Executives  

Title of report: Oxfordshire Plan 2050: Statement of Community Involvement  

Date:                 28th February 2022 

Report of          Philip Wadsworth – Programme Lead of the Oxfordshire Plan   
            

            

1 Introduction and background  
 

1.1 This report seeks approval to adopt the revised Oxfordshire Plan 2050 Statement of Community 

Involvement following the lifting of the coronavirus restrictions. It also provides an update on the recent 

consultation and the next steps. 
  
1.2 The Statement of Community Involvement (see appendix 1) outlines how the community and 

stakeholders will be consulted during the preparation of the Oxfordshire Plan.  

1.3   The Oxfordshire Plan is a joint statutory spatial plan and covers the authorities of Cherwell District 

Council, Oxford City Council, South Oxfordshire District Council, Vale of White Horse District Council 

and West Oxfordshire District Council. These authorities have made a commitment as part of the housing 

and growth deal agreement with government to prepare the Oxfordshire Plan on a joint basis to guide the 

future planning and development of the county up to 2050. Once adopted, the Oxfordshire Plan will form 

part of the development plan of each authority and will be an important material consideration in the 

determination of planning applications.  
 

Executive summary and purpose: 
 

This report provides an update on the Oxfordshire Plan Statement of Community Involvement in 

response to the recent lifting of coronavirus restrictions.   The statement sets out how we will consult 

with people and local organisations in the preparation of this plan.  

  

Once adopted, the Oxfordshire Plan will provide a high-level spatial framework to shape the future 

planning of the county up to 2050 and will sit alongside Local Plan reviews and Neighbourhood Plans. 
 

Recommendation: 
 

Cabinets and executives are asked to approve the adoption of the revised Oxfordshire Plan Statement 

of Community Involvement, and to note that the statement will be kept under regular review as the 

project continues. 

 

Appendices:  

 

Appendix 1:  Statement of Community Involvement  
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



Page 2 of 3 

 

1.4   The Oxfordshire Plan will provide a positive and high-level planning framework to support the 

delivery of new homes, economic development and associated infrastructure across Oxfordshire, with a 

bold vision to confront our climate crisis, build a fairer and more prosperous economy, foster more thriving 

and accessible neighbourhoods, and support a truly green recovery that protects the future of our wildlife 

and environment up to 2050.  

 

1.5   The Oxfordshire Plan will build on the Future Oxfordshire Partnership’s strategic vision (further 

details are provided at https://futureoxfordshirepartnership.org) and the objectives of other relevant plans 

and strategies at the county level, including the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy, Oxfordshire Industrial 

Strategy and Oxfordshire Transport and Connectivity Plan. A flow diagram summarising the relationship 

between the Oxfordshire Plan and other relevant plans and strategies, such as Local Plans, is attached at 

appendix 1 in the draft Statement of Community Involvement. The Oxfordshire Plan, once adopted, will 

guide and inform the preparation of the Local Plan reviews and other development plan documents, where 

relevant.  

 
1.6   Since July 2021, much progress has been made on the preparation of the Oxfordshire Plan, including 

a further round of public consultation (regulation 18, part 2) and the gathering of supporting evidence. The 

recent public consultation (July–October 2021) generated significant interest from a wide range of 

individuals and organisations.  We received a total of 3723 individual responses to the consultation, from 

around 422 individuals and organisations, including statutory consultees, district councils, neighbouring 

authorities, town and parish councils, major employers, infrastructure providers, developers, landowners 

and government agencies. 

 

1.7  We are in the process of analysing the responses to the recent consultation (regulation 18, part 2) on 

the emerging plan. Officers across the local planning authorities are still reflecting on the feedback from 

the recent scrutiny committee meetings on the key messages from the regulation 18 (part 2) consultation 

and will report on the detailed findings and next steps in due course.   

 

1.8   Officers are also reviewing the Oxfordshire Plan work programme in the context of the feedback 

from the recent consultation and discussions with the government on the timings of future stages. This 

includes consideration of the inter-relationships between the Oxfordshire Plan and Local Plan reviews and 

other relevant supporting strategies (e.g. Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy). That detail must be worked 

through to help inform the next stages of the Oxfordshire Plan process, including the timetable through to 

adoption, and we will engage with the government (Department for Levelling Up, Housing & 

Communities)..  

 

2   Statement of Community Involvement – its role and purpose  

2.1  The revised Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) is outlined in appendix 1.  It replaces the 

previous version of the statement, adopted in July 2021.  
 

2.2 This statement sets out Oxfordshire’s approach to the effective and meaningful engagement of people 

and organisations during the next stages of plan preparation. In turn, it will help to ensure that the emerging 

policies and proposals of the Oxfordshire Plan reflect the needs, aspirations and concerns of residents and 

businesses across Oxfordshire.   

2.3  The statement has been updated to reflect the government’s recent lifting of the coronavirus 

restrictions (as set out in legislation) and the increased use of social media and other digital engagement 

tools in the process of preparing the Oxfordshire Plan. It also explains:    

  how consultation and engagement on the Oxfordshire Plan will take place; 

  who will be consulted and when; and  

  how future consultation stages will be monitored to ensure they remain effective and  

 meaningful.   
 

                                                           
 Page 42

Agenda Item 8

https://futureoxfordshirepartnership.org/


Page 3 of 3 

 

2.4   Please note: the attached statement is specific to the production of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050. Local 

planning authorities in Oxfordshire will publish their own individual SCIs related to the production of 

their local plan reviews and other relevant development plan documents.  

 

2.5   This statement also outlines the stages of the Oxfordshire Plan preparation process, including the 

extent and nature of the public consultation activities as well as the role of different organisations and 

representatives. These stages are as follows:   

 

 Early informal consultation and engagement (regulation 18) 

 Formal consultation on draft plan (regulation 19) 

 Submission and examination (regulations 22 and 34).  

 Adoption (regulation 36). 

 

3  Legal implications  
 

3.1  The Oxfordshire Plan must be prepared in accordance with the procedures and processes set out in 

the latest Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)2. It must also meet the requirements of the duty to 

cooperate set out in the Localism Act (2011) and the tests of soundness set out in the National Planning 

Policy Framework. Failure to demonstrate compliance with the requirements set out in the legislation 

would render the plan incapable of adoption.  

 

3.2   Subject to the approval of the five Oxfordshire authorities, the revised SCI will be made publicly 

available on the Oxfordshire Plan website at https://oxfordshireplan.org. 
 

4  Financial implications 
 

4.1  The next stages of the plan process may incur small additional costs to the overall plan budget, in 

respect of publicity, marketing, consolidation of web-based information, printing and commissioning of 

consultation documents. However, efficiency savings can be achieved through the more effective use of 

digital engagement tools, twin-tracked consultations and more efficient deployment of resources.  So 

overall the financial implications of approving this revised Statement of Community Involvement are 

neutral. 

 

5  Risks 

 

5.1  The main risk associated with not proceeding with publishing the updated SCI is that the Oxfordshire 

Plan process could be challenged for not complying with appropriate regulations.  Officers have limited 

control over this risk.  Any risks will be managed as part of the operational risk register process escalating 

as and when necessary. 

 

                                                           
2  Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

Report author: Philip Wadsworth: Programme Lead of the Oxfordshire Plan   

Contact information: Philip.wadsworth@oxfordshire.gov.uk  

Date: 28/02/2021 

                        

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8

https://oxfordshireplan.org/


    1  

 
 

 

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY 

INVOLVEMENT 

 

HOW THE PUBLIC AND STAKEHOLDERS WILL BE 

INVOLVED IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE OXFORDSHIRE 

PLAN 

 

UPDATED IN FEBRUARY 2022 

 

 

 

 

Produced by 

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 8



    2  

Supported by

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



    3  

1  Introduction 
 

1.1  This statement sets out how people and organisations can get involved in shaping the future of 

Oxfordshire. It updates and replaces the previous Statement of Community Involvement, published in June 

2021. 

 

1.2  This update provides the latest information on the progress of the Oxfordshire Plan, including how 

community and stakeholder engagement will operate. It has also been updated in response to the recent 

lifting of coronavirus restrictions.  It explains the consultation methods that will be used at different points 

in the preparation of this plan to ensure effective community and stakeholder engagement from the outset.  

 

1.3   The Oxfordshire Plan is a joint statutory plan and covers the authorities of Cherwell District Council, 

Oxford City Council, South Oxfordshire District Council, Vale of White Horse District Council and West 

Oxfordshire District Council (as defined in figure 1).  

 
Figure 1: Oxfordshire authority boundaries  
  

 
1.4  Recent changes to government legislation (following the lifting of the coronavirus restrictions) and the 

increased use of digital engagement tools (e.g. social media platforms) mean that this statement needs to be 

updated.  

 

Page 46

Agenda Item 8



    4 

 

1.5  This statement sets out Oxfordshire’s approach to the effective engagement of people and organisations 

during the production of the Oxfordshire Plan. Early and meaningful engagement will help to ensure that 

planning policies in the emerging plan reflect the needs, aspirations and concerns of residents and businesses 

across Oxfordshire. It also explains:    

 

  how consultation and engagement on the Oxfordshire Plan will take place; 

  who will be consulted and when; and  

  how future consultation stages will be monitored to ensure they remain effective and  

 meaningful.   

 

1.6   Community engagement lies at the heart of good planning in Oxfordshire. In Oxfordshire, good 

planning will make a significant and positive difference to the lives of residents and businesses and help 

deliver the new homes, jobs, services we need and safeguard the environmental assets we value. By 

preparing this plan, the public and stakeholders will have the opportunity to share their ideas and feedback 

on the future planning of Oxfordshire, including the future role of Oxfordshire’s settlements. 

 

1.7   The Oxfordshire Plan will be prepared in line with the procedures and processes set out in this 

statement1.  

 

1.8    We hope that you find this statement clear and easy to read. Technical terms are defined in the text or 

the glossary (see appendix 1). All the most up-to-date information on the emerging plan is available from 

our website at https://oxfordshireplan.org. 

 

2. Background  
 

2.1  Local authorities in Oxfordshire have agreed a housing and growth deal with the government to plan 

and support the delivery of significant new affordable homes and major infrastructure investment in 

response to the growing needs of the population. This deal includes a commitment to produce a joint 

statutory spatial plan (known as the “Oxfordshire Plan”) to guide the future planning of the county up to 

2050.  

 

2.2  The Oxfordshire Plan will provide a positive, high-level planning framework to guide the delivery of 

new homes, economic development and associated infrastructure across the county, with a bold ambition to 

confront our climate crisis, build a fairer and more prosperous economy, foster more thriving and accessible 

neighbourhoods and support a truly green recovery that protects the future of our environment and wildlife. 

Specifically, it will outline:  

 

 a shared vision of how the county will develop and change over the next 25-30 years, based on the 

shared priorities of the Future Oxfordshire Partnership2 ; 

 the broad pattern, scale and quality of new development (including the provision of affordable homes, 

employment and supporting infrastructure) that will come forward across the whole of Oxfordshire, 

and how it will be apportioned to the city and districts; 

 a series of theme-based policies to guide and inform planning decisions at the strategic level, 

including the preparation and implementation of Local Plan reviews and major planning applications; 

and 

 approach to delivery and implementation, including review triggers, monitoring targets, phasing 

timescales and funding mechanisms. 

 

2.3    Once adopted, the Oxfordshire Plan will form part of the development plan of each authority in 

                                                
1  Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
2  The Future Oxfordshire Partnership has developed a long-term strategic vision on the future of Oxfordshire up to 2050, in 

consultation with key strategic partners and the wider public, which will inform the development of other plans and wider 

strategies, including the Oxfordshire Plan (see https://futureoxfordshirepartnership.org). 

Page 47

Agenda Item 8

https://oxfordshireplan.org/
https://futureoxfordshirepartnership.org/


    5 

 

Oxfordshire3. 

 

2.4    Figure 2 overleaf shows the relationship between the Oxfordshire Plan and other relevant plans and 

strategies, such as Local Plans.  The Oxfordshire Plan will build on the current suite of adopted Local Plans 

(up to 2031/2036) and look ahead to align with the long-term priorities of county-wide strategies, such as 

the Local Industrial Strategy, Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy and Oxfordshire Transport and 

Connectivity Plan, up until 2050.  It will also sit alongside the high-level policies expected to be set out in 

the government’s emerging Oxford-Cambridge Arc Spatial Development Framework.  

 

2.5  The Oxfordshire Plan will, in turn, inform and guide the review and roll-forward of city and district 

Local Plans and other development plan documents (e.g. area action plans), where appropriate. Local Plan 

reviews will need to align with the policies set out in the Oxfordshire Plan.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 2: Relationship between the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 and other relevant plans and strategies 
 

                                                
3  Oxfordshire’s development plan consists of the Oxfordshire Plan, Local Plans (plus any supporting development plan 

documents, such as area action plans, where appropriate) and Neighbourhood Plans.  Future planning decisions will be 

determined in accordance with the development plan unless other relevant considerations need to be taken into account (section 

28 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 - as amended).  

Page 48

Agenda Item 8



    6 

 

 
 

*Statutory documents which form part of Oxfordshire’s development plan 

 

3. How the public and stakeholders will be involved in the preparation of the Oxfordshire 

Plan 
 

3.1   As presented in figure 3, the Oxfordshire Plan involves different stages of preparation, which require 

public consultation and engagement. This statement sets out how these requirements will be met. 
 

3.2  The Oxfordshire Plan must also be prepared in line with other specific legal and procedural 

requirements. A sustainability appraisal will be undertaken at each stage of preparation to evaluate the 

social, economic and environmental impacts of the plan policies and alternative options (as per the 

regulations4). In doing so, it will ensure that the plan contributes to the achievement of sustainable 

development. Specific consultation bodies (Environment Agency, Heritage England and Natural England) 

will need to be notified on the scope and content of the sustainability appraisal alongside the preparation of 

the plan. These policies will also be assessed in terms of their potential impact on:  

 different groups of people (as per the Equality Act); and 

 the integrity of internationally designated nature conservation sites (as per the Habitat Regulations). 

 

3.3   Comments will be invited on the findings of the sustainability appraisal and other supporting documents 

at each stage of public consultation.  

 

3.4  The Oxfordshire Plan will also need to be prepared in accordance with the duty to co-operate set out in 

legislation5.  It places a legal duty on local authorities to co-operate with neighbouring districts, boroughs 

                                                
4  Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
5   Localism Act 2011 

 National & sub-

national strategies  

(e.g. Oxford-Cambridge 

Arc Spatial Framework) 

OXFORDSHIRE PLAN 

2050*  
 

(Future Oxfordshire 

Partnership) 

Oxfordshire 

Transport and 

Connectivity 

Plan  
 

(Oxfordshire 

County Council)  

Oxfordshire 

Infrastructure 

Strategy  
 

(Oxfordshire 

County Council)   

Oxfordshire 

Economic Plan & 

Local Industrial 

Strategy  

 

(Local Economic 

Partnership)  

Local Plans & other 

development plan 

documents* 
 

(City & district councils)  

Neighbourhood Plans* 
  

(Town & parish councils & 

neighbourhood forums) 

Oxfordshire 

Strategic Vision  

 

(Future 

Oxfordshire 

Partnership)  

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



    7  

and counties, as well as other organisations including the local primary care trust and transport authorities 

on an ongoing and collaborative basis, particularly in the context of strategic cross-boundary matters. 

Oxfordshire authorities are working together under the duty to co-operate to progress the Oxfordshire Plan 

through to adoption.   

4. Who will be engaged during the preparation of the Oxfordshire Plan? 

4.1  A wide range of groups, organisations and individuals will be invited to participate in the plan 

preparation process. These include specific and general consultation bodies (as defined in the regulations).  

 

4.2  Specific consultation bodies include:  

 

 statutory consultees as set out in the relevant regulations, including neighbouring councils and 

government agencies, such as Highways England, Natural England, Environment Agency and Historic 

England; 

 town and parish councils;  

 neighbouring authorities; and 

 local service providers (including the emergency services, utility companies and public health 

providers) 

 

4.3  General consultation bodies must be consulted at key stages of the plan process where the proposed 

subject matter will be of interest to them. These include: 

 

 national and regional organisations, such as the National Trust and wildlife trusts; 

 businesses and economic groups including the Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership,  

universities and colleges;  

 housebuilders, developers, landowners and housing associations; 

 local organisations and societies, such as civic amenity groups and community boards 

 hard-to-reach groups, such as young people, people with disabilities, ethnic minorities and gypsy and 

travelers; and 

 residents and individuals, who may have an interest in the Oxfordshire Plan 

 

 

5. How do we consult?  

 

5.1  A range of different methods will be used at each stage of the plan process to inform, consult and engage 

with the public and interested parties, depending on the nature of the consultation and the specific needs of 

the audience or target group. This will involve:  

 

 updating the web pages to include relevant links to documents and post latest news;    

 producing consultation documents and materials that are clear, concise and avoid unnecessary 

technical language, as far as possible, without understating the complexities of any issues or 

decisions; 

 preparing press releases and advertising in the local press;  

 holding engagement events, such as exhibitions and briefings, face-to-face or online, where 

reasonably practicable; 

 making consultation documents available upon request, in other languages, large print, braille and 

audio;  

 preparing visual aides (e.g. presentations) that are accessible to blind people, people with impaired 

hearing and people with mental health issues or learning difficulties;   

 preparing response forms/survey forms to facilitate responses to the consultation;  

 producing a glossary explaining the technical and planning terms used in the plan;  

Page 50

Agenda Item 8



    8 

 

 using high-quality visuals and graphics to enhance the text and illustrate key points from the plan, 

where appropriate; 

 preparing leaflets/newsletters summarising the purpose of the consultation and how to make 

comments; and 

 maintaining an up-to-date consultation database containing specific and general consultees and others 

that have expressed an interest to be consulted on the plan, in accordance with the General Data 

Protection Regulations. Where consultation is required, all those on the consultation database will be 

notified. When individual or organisations makes a representation on the Oxfordshire Plan or its 

supporting documentation, they will be added to the consultation database. 

 

5.2  Where appropriate, we may use panels or reference groups as part of future public engagements as well 

as undertake additional research, such as an opinion poll.  
 

5.3  We want everyone to have an opportunity to shape and influence how Oxfordshire is planned and 

developed in the future, irrespective of their differences, including by way of age, disability, gender 

reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion and belief, sex, employment status, social background 

and sexual orientation. Consultation events and meetings will be carefully planned to maximise accessibility 

to a range of stakeholders and individuals, from different parts of Oxfordshire, at a range of times (subject 

to meeting covid-19 guidelines).  Hard copies of the consultation documents can also be printed on request 

(subject to a small fee to cover costs).  

 

5.4   All consultation documents and relevant evidence will be made available online (via the Oxfordshire 

Plan web site).  Where requested, consultation documents will be made available in other languages or 

formats (e.g. braille, large print and sign language), as appropriate.  

 

5.5  We will ensure that personal data gathered within public consultation processes will comply with the 

General Data Protection Regulations 2018 and the Data Protection Act 2018, in terms of how it is collected 

and managed.  

 

5.6  We will also raise awareness of the publication of documents and public consultations via our website, 

social media (Facebook, Twitter and Instagram), an email to those on our mailing list and through a press 

release sent to local media. It may be possible due to changes in covid-19 advice to reinstate hard copies of 

the plan and relevant consultation documents at deposit locations (all libraries and council offices in 

Oxfordshire).  

 

5.7  Additional days will be added to public consultation periods where statutory public holidays fall within 

the formal consultation period. 

 

5.8   Some public events, meetings, workshops, exhibitions and focus groups may now be able to take place 

in person, albeit with possible restrictions6. We will also continue to undertake public engagement virtually, 

using online meeting systems, web pages and social media, in the interests of public health and ease of 

access. For the latest information on the plan, please see the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 website at 

https://oxfordshireplan.org. 

 

6. How to comment on the Oxfordshire Plan? 
 

6.1   As set out in previous statements, stakeholders and members of the public can respond to public 

consultations on the Oxfordshire Plan in one of the following ways: 

 

 Online (via the Oxfordshire Plan website at https://oxfordshireplan.org).  

 Email: info@oxfordshireplan.org 

                                                

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8

mailto:info@oxfordshireplan.org


    9 

 

 Post: Oxfordshire County Council, Oxfordshire Plan 2050, County Hall, New Road, Oxford,  OX1 

1ND 

 

6.2   A comments form will be produced at each stage of public consultation. The form will be able to be 

used through the consultation portal on the web site, or alternatively the form or letters can be emailed or 

posted to us. Receiving comments through both electronic and handwritten formats will ensure those 

without internet access will not be disadvantaged in terms of engagement. 

 

6.3   We would encourage people and organisations to make use of the “Oxfordshire Plan 2050” website, 

which will set out the information we are seeking at each consultation stage, together with clear instructions 

on how to register comments. Online engagement will be the easiest way to respond to public consultations 

and will allow us to quickly consider your comments on the plan.   

 

6.4 All comments received in response to a public consultation will be considered. A consultation report 

summarising comments and our responses to the issues raised will be made available on the Oxfordshire 

Plan website. 

 

7. When we will consult?  
 

7.1   Figure 3 below sets out the stages of plan preparation, including key milestones and extent and nature 

of the public consultation activities, as well as the role of different organisations and representatives. These 

stages are as follows:  

 

 Early informal consultation and engagement (regulation 18).  

 Formal consultation on draft plan (regulation 19).  

 Submission and examination (regulations 22 and 34).  

 Adoption (regulation 36). 

 

Figure 3: Stages of preparation  

Regulation 18 consultation  

Description of plan stage: 

Regulation 18 is the earliest stage of plan engagement and represents the scoping stage to decide what 

should be included within the plan. This includes potential policy options and spatial options.  Due to 

the nature of this stage with its ambition to gain a variety of views on what could be included in the 

plan, multiple consultations can take place, of which two have taken place so far.  

Who was/will be 

involved? 

What were we/are we consulting on? How did we consult, or how 

are we consulting?  

Informal consultation on the emerging Oxfordshire Plan7  

Various 

bodies/stakeholders are 

consulted in line with 

those required under 

regulation 18 of the 

Town and Country 

Planning (Local 

Planning) Regulations 

2012.  
 

This includes the general 

public and other 

A report summarising the results of the 

consultation (including an explanation 

of how the views from stakeholders 

have been considered in the 

development of the plan).  

Following the consultation, we will 

update the plan to take account of the 

responses from stakeholders, the results 

of the sustainability appraisal and the 

supporting evidence. 
 

 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 
website 

 Contact 

consultees/organisations and 
other interested parties by 

email 
 Social media posts 

 Events/ exhibitions 

 Press release 

 Documents available to view 

in council buildings 

 

                                                
 

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



    10  

interested bodies as 

appropriate. 

 

Publication (regulation 19)  

Description of plan stage: 

Regulation 19 is the second stage of the consultation process and is the stage at which the final draft 

version of the plan is published. At this stage, representations must relate to the tests relating to how the 

plan has been prepared (legal compliance) and its content (soundness), as outlined in government 

guidance. The public consultation represents the last opportunity to influence and help shape the 

direction of the plan before it is submitted to the secretary of state. 

Who was/will be 

involved? 

What were we/are we consulting on? How did we consult, or how 

are we consulting? 

Consultation on the submission draft plan  

Various 

bodies/stakeholders will 

be consulted in line with 

those required under 

regulation 19 of the Town 

and Country Planning 

(Local Planning) 

Regulations 2012. This 

will include the general 

public and other 

interested bodies as 

appropriate. 

We will consult on the draft submission 

plan over a period of at least six weeks. 

This will set out the final proposed 

strategy and policies of the plan. 
 

 

 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

website 

 Contact 

consultees/organisations and 

other interested parties by 
email 

 Social media posts 

 In person and/or virtual 

consultation events with key 
stakeholders and the public 

(depending on government 

regulations at the time of the 
consultation)  

 Press release 

 Documents available to view 

in libraries and council 
buildings 

 

Submission and independent examination (regulations 22 and 34) 

Description of plan stage:  

Following the close of the regulation 19 consultation, the Oxfordshire Plan will be submitted alongside 

the representations received during the regulation 19 consultation and supporting evidence (including 

the sustainability appraisal) to the secretary of state, who will appoint an inspector to carry out an 

independent examination.  

 

Supporting documents will include technical studies, background papers and written summaries of 

previous public consultations setting out how the issues raised through the publication stage have been 

addressed in the plan.    

 

The examination will assess whether the plan has been prepared in accordance with legal and 

procedural requirements (e.g. duty to co-operate and public consultation) and meets the test of 

soundness. The four tests of soundness are set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).  

Who was/will be 

involved? 

What were we/are we consulting on? How did we consult, or how 

are we consulting?  

Issues and matters  

We will notify 

people/organisations 

listed in the regulations 

and others as 

The inspector will consider the evidence 

used to support the plan and any 

representations which have been put 

 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

website 

 Contact 

consultees/organisations and 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



    11  

appropriate via the 

programme officer about 

the commencement of 

the examination.  
 

 

forward from stakeholders and other 

interested parties.  
 

All documentation associated with the 

examination will be recorded and made 

available to the public and stakeholders 

via the Oxfordshire Plan examination 

library on our joint website. The 

examination library will be kept up to 

date as the examination progresses. 

other interested parties by 
email 

 Social media posts 

 In person and/or virtual 

consultation events with key 
stakeholders and the public 

(dependent on government 
regulations at the time of the 

consultation)  
 Press release 

Public hearing sessions  

Anyone has the right to 

attend and speak at 

hearings if they wish, so 

long as they have 

submitted 

representations on the 

Oxfordshire Plan during 

the formal consultation 

stage (regulation 19) and 

stated in advance that 

they wish to attend the 

hearings. 

The planning inspector will hold several 

public hearing sessions in the form of 

informal roundtable discissions, where 

the inspector will probe the key issues 

and matters relating to the plan and its 

preparation.   
 

Stakeholders and members of the public 

will be invited to attend and speak at 

specific hearings at which they wish to 

discuss the issues raised in their 

representations.  

 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

website 

 Contact 

consultees/organisations and 

other relevant stakeholders 
via email to notify them of 

the hearings 

 Press release 

 Social media posts 

 

 

 

 

Consultation on the inspector’s main modifications to the submission plan   

We will consult 

people/organisations 

listed in the regulations, 

general public and other 

interested bodies as 

appropriate. 

As part of this examination process, the 

inspector will propose changes that they 

consider necessary to ensure it is 'sound' 

and legally compliant. These are known 

as 'main modifications'.  
 

All main modifications will be subject to 

a 6-week period of consultation (see 

below). The inspector will consider all 

the representations made before 

finalising the examination report and the 

schedule of recommended main 

modifications.  
 

Following the close of the public 

consultation, we will publish a statement 

of consultation setting out a summary of 

the comments made on the main 

modifications. 

 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

website 

 Contact 

consultees/organisations and 

other relevant stakeholders 
by email  

 Press release 

 Social media posts 

 

 

Receipt and publication of the inspector’s report (regulation 35) and subsequent adoption of the 

plan (regulation 36) 

Description of plan stage:  

This is the last stage of the preparation process following the public examination, at which the inspector 

publishes their recommendations on the soundness of the plan in a final report.  If the inspector 

confirms that the plan is sound and legally compliant, we will be able to formally adopt the plan 

(subject to the ‘main modifications’ identified in the report). In addition, we will be able to make 

minor, non-material changes (‘additional modifications’) at any time before formal adoption to improve 

the clarity, consistency and accuracy of the plan.   

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



    12  

Who was/will be 

involved? 

What were we/are we consulting on? How did we consult, or how are 

we consulting?  
Receipt and publication of the inspector’s report  

We will notify 

people/organisations 

listed in the regulations 

and others as appropriate 

via programme officer 

about the publication of 

the inspector’s report.   

At the end of the examination, the 

planning inspector will publish a report 

on the submitted plan to the six 

Oxfordshire authorities recommending 

whether they can adopt the plan. In 

most cases, the report will recommend 

some changes (known as ‘main 

modifications’ – see below) that are 

necessary to allow the plan to be 

adopted.  
 

There is no consultation on the 

inspector’s report, but it will be made 

available to the public via our website.  

 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 website 

 Contact 

consultees/organisations and 
other relevant stakeholders by 

email 
 Press release 

 Social media posts 

 

Adoption  

We will notify 

people/organisations 

listed in the regulations 

and others as appropriate 

via programme officer 

about the adoption of the 

plan.  
 

Once the examination has closed, 

approval will be sought from the six 

Oxfordshire authorities to accept the 

recommendations of the inspector’s 

report and formally adopt the 

Oxfordshire Plan.  
  

 Oxfordshire Plan 2050 website 

– publish the adoption version 
of the plan 

 Press release 

 Social media posts 

 Contact organisations and 

other relevant stakeholders via 
email 

 Publish an adoption statement, 

which will advise of a six-

week period within which any 
challenge via judicial review 

must be made. 
 Publish a summary of the 

Oxfordshire Plan 

Sustainability Appraisal and 
Habitat Regulations 

Assessment  
 

8. Monitoring and review  
 

8.1  This statement will be kept under regular review and will be updated where necessary to reflect changes 

to the Oxfordshire Plan timetable and other circumstances, such as the ongoing coronavirus pandemic.  
 

Appendix 1: Glossary  
 

Term Acronym Explanation  

Authority 

Monitoring 

Report  

AMR Councils are required to produce an authority monitoring report (as set out in 

section 113 of the 2011 Localism Act) to review the progress and 

effectiveness of the plan and the extent to which its policies are being 

achieved. 

Department for 

Levelling Up, 

Housing and 

Communities 

DLUHC A ministerial department which “supports communities across the UK to 

thrive, making them great places to live and work” (see www.gov.uk)  

  

Development 

plan  

 Councils have a statutory duty (either jointly or individually) to prepare and 

update development plans across their areas in consultation with the local 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-levelling-up-housing-and-communities
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-levelling-up-housing-and-communities
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-levelling-up-housing-and-communities
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-levelling-up-housing-and-communities
http://www.gov.uk/


    13  

community and stakeholders. The development plan guides future planning 

decisions and ensures these are rational and consistent, having regard to 

other material considerations. 

 

Oxfordshire’s development plan, once adopted, will include the following 

documents.  

 

 Oxfordshire Plan 

 Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Plan  

 Local Plans (city and districts) 

 Neighbourhood Plans  

Duty to co-

operate   

 Councils are required under the Localism Act to work together on a 

cooperative and ongoing basis to deal with cross-boundary issues, such as 

public transport, large-scale housing allocations or large employment 

clusters.  

Equalities impact 

assessment 

 An assessment of impacts against different characteristics (e.g. gender, 

ethnicity and disability) protected under the 2010 Equality Act  

Examination    The examination will assess whether the plan meets the tests of soundness 

(as set out in National Planning Policy Framework) and complies with the 

regulations.   

Future 

Oxfordshire 

Partnership 

FOP  Joint committee of the six councils of Oxfordshire (as listed in paragraph 1.3 

above) along with the local economic partnership and other key partners.  

The partnership is overseeing the delivery of the Oxfordshire Plan.  

Habitat 

Regulations 

Assessment  

HRA An assessment of the potential effects of a plan or programme on the 

integrity of internationally important nature conservation sites  

Local 

Development 

Scheme  

 LDS A scheduled work programme and timetable to guide the preparation of joint 

plans or single plans  

 

Localism Act   This act introduced several new rights and powers to allow 

local communities to shape new development, including the provision to 

prepare a ‘neighbourhood plan’ to guide future planning of an area 

Local Plans  Local plans are prepared to guide the future planning and development of an 

area. Work has begun on the review of the adopted local plans in each 

administrative area. Wherever possible, preparation will be undertaken in 

parallel with the timetable of the Oxfordshire Plan.  

National Planning 

Policy 

Framework 

NPPF This document sets out the government’s policies on the planning system in 

England.  

 

Although not part of the development plan, the policies set out in the 

framework must be considered in the preparation of statutory plans, such as 

joint plans. The framework sets out a presumption in favour of sustainable 

development when preparing plans and making planning decisions. 

National Planning 

Practice 

Guidance  

NPPG National planning guidance which helps explain how the policies in the 

framework (NPPF) will be applied. Regular updates are published online.  

Neighbourhood 

Plans 

 A planning document which sets out the vision to guide the future planning 

of a neighbourhood area, and contains policies relating to the development 

and use of land in this area. Once adopted, it will have formal status as 

development plan document and form part of Oxfordshire’s development 

plan. All neighbourhood plans must be in general conformity with the 

strategic policies set out in the Oxfordshire Plan / Local Plans. 

Oxford-

Cambridge Arc 

 The five counties (Bedfordshire, Buckinghamshire, Cambridgeshire, 

Northamptonshire and Oxfordshire) around the line between Oxford, Milton 

Keynes and Cambridge. The arc has one of the fastest-growing economies in 

England. It supports more than 2 million jobs and adds over £110 billion to 

the economy every year. 

Page 56

Agenda Item 8

http://www.communities.gov.uk/localgovernment/decentralisation/localismbill/righttobuild/


    14  

Oxford-

Cambridge Arc 

Spatial 

Framework  

 A long-term statutory decision-making framework to guide the future growth 

of the Oxford-Cambridge Arc to 2050. This will inform the preparation of 

other plans (e.g. Oxfordshire Plan) and strategies across the arc.  

Planning and 

Compulsory 

Purchase Act  

 National planning legislation from central government aimed at improving 

the planning process and enhancing community involvement in it.   

 

Under section 15 of the act, councils are required to set out current planning 

policy documents, and any new or replacement documents that it intends to 

produce in the future, and list them within a local development scheme.  

Spatial strategy  The strategy will set out the broad locations where new homes, jobs and 

services will be provided across Oxfordshire to meet identified needs in line 

with the overall vision and objectives of the Oxfordshire Plan. Specific 

proposals will be shown on a key diagram.  

 

In this context, preferred means that the strategy is deemed to be the most 

sustainable and appropriate way of meeting Oxfordshire’s future needs in the 

light of reasonable alternatives.   

Oxfordshire 

Housing and 

Growth Deal  

 Signed agreement between the government and the six authorities of 

Oxfordshire / Oxfordshire Local Economic Partnership to secure funding 

towards the delivery of new affordable homes, jobs and infrastructure 

investment up to 2031 and beyond. The deal committed to prepare a joint 

statutory plan to guide the future planning of the county up to 2050.  

Reasonable 

alternatives   

 The different realistic options considered in developing the policies in the 

Oxfordshire Plan 

Statement of 

Community 

Involvement 

SCI  This document outlines how the community and stakeholders will be 

involved in the preparation and continuing review of the Oxfordshire Plan.  

Strategic 

Environmental 

Assessment  

SEA A general term used internationally to describe environmental assessment as 

applied to policies, plans and programmes. 

Sustainability 

appraisal  

SA A systematic process (a requirement of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004) aimed at appraising the social, environmental and 

economic effects of plan, strategies and policies to ensure they accord with 

the objectives of sustainable development. SA also incorporates the 

requirements of the SEA Directive. 

Tests of 

soundness 

 Plans must be positively prepared, justified, effective and consistent with 

national planning policy in line with the National Planning Policy 

Framework.   

Town and 

Country Planning 

(Local Planning) 

(England) 

Regulations  

 The regulations set out the public participation and consultation required 

when preparing and revising a statutory plan. Regulations 18, 19, 20 relate to 

informal and formal consultations of plan preparation. Regulation 24 relates 

to the independent examination of the plan. 

 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



 

 

  

Strategic 

Performance 

Report 

Quarter Two 2021/22 
November 2021 

 

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 9



1 
 

CONTENTS 

BACKGROUND ...................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

STRATEGIC CONTEXT ......................................................................................................................................................... 3 

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS ............................................................................................................................................. 4 

THEME 1. PROTECT AND RESTORE THE NATURAL WORLD ........................................................................................... 5 

THEME 2. OPENNESS AND ACCOUNTABILITY .................................................................................................................. 9 

THEME 3. ACTION ON THE CLIMATE EMERGENCY ........................................................................................................ 14 

THEME 4. IMPROVED ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING ................................................................................ 19 

THEME 5. HOMES AND INFRASTRUCTURES THAT MEET LOCAL NEEDS .................................................................... 26 

THEME 6. INVESTMENTS THAT REBUILD OUR FINANCIAL VIABILITY ........................................................................... 32 

COVID-19 RESPONSE AND RECOVERY ........................................................................................................................... 36 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 9

file:///V:/Corporate%20Services/Policy%20and%20Programmes/Insight%20and%20Policy/Performance%20Management/2021%2022%20Performance%20Mangagement/Q2/Collated%20Reports/South/Quarterly%20Report%20South%20Q2%20V7.docx%23_Toc87876597
file:///V:/Corporate%20Services/Policy%20and%20Programmes/Insight%20and%20Policy/Performance%20Management/2021%2022%20Performance%20Mangagement/Q2/Collated%20Reports/South/Quarterly%20Report%20South%20Q2%20V7.docx%23_Toc87876598
file:///V:/Corporate%20Services/Policy%20and%20Programmes/Insight%20and%20Policy/Performance%20Management/2021%2022%20Performance%20Mangagement/Q2/Collated%20Reports/South/Quarterly%20Report%20South%20Q2%20V7.docx%23_Toc87876599
file:///V:/Corporate%20Services/Policy%20and%20Programmes/Insight%20and%20Policy/Performance%20Management/2021%2022%20Performance%20Mangagement/Q2/Collated%20Reports/South/Quarterly%20Report%20South%20Q2%20V7.docx%23_Toc87876600
file:///V:/Corporate%20Services/Policy%20and%20Programmes/Insight%20and%20Policy/Performance%20Management/2021%2022%20Performance%20Mangagement/Q2/Collated%20Reports/South/Quarterly%20Report%20South%20Q2%20V7.docx%23_Toc87876601
file:///V:/Corporate%20Services/Policy%20and%20Programmes/Insight%20and%20Policy/Performance%20Management/2021%2022%20Performance%20Mangagement/Q2/Collated%20Reports/South/Quarterly%20Report%20South%20Q2%20V7.docx%23_Toc87876602
file:///V:/Corporate%20Services/Policy%20and%20Programmes/Insight%20and%20Policy/Performance%20Management/2021%2022%20Performance%20Mangagement/Q2/Collated%20Reports/South/Quarterly%20Report%20South%20Q2%20V7.docx%23_Toc87876603
file:///V:/Corporate%20Services/Policy%20and%20Programmes/Insight%20and%20Policy/Performance%20Management/2021%2022%20Performance%20Mangagement/Q2/Collated%20Reports/South/Quarterly%20Report%20South%20Q2%20V7.docx%23_Toc87876604
file:///V:/Corporate%20Services/Policy%20and%20Programmes/Insight%20and%20Policy/Performance%20Management/2021%2022%20Performance%20Mangagement/Q2/Collated%20Reports/South/Quarterly%20Report%20South%20Q2%20V7.docx%23_Toc87876605
file:///V:/Corporate%20Services/Policy%20and%20Programmes/Insight%20and%20Policy/Performance%20Management/2021%2022%20Performance%20Mangagement/Q2/Collated%20Reports/South/Quarterly%20Report%20South%20Q2%20V7.docx%23_Toc87876606


2 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

1. The Council monitors performance and 
progress towards achieving the aims and 
priorities set out in the Corporate Plan 

 
2. This report provides a strategic overview of 

the performance for Q2 (1 July to 30 
September 2021), focusing on the activity 
to deliver the corporate priorities in the 
South Oxfordshire District Council 
Corporate Plan 2020-24. 

 
3. In addition to providing a performance 

update and assurance against the delivery 
of the Council’s six strategic themes in the 
Corporate Plan, this report will also provide 
any strategic context relevant to the 
Council’s operations and, given the 
significant impact of Covid-19 on 
communities, services and staff, the report 
will include a section on Covid-19 response 
and recovery. 

 
4. This report is the second iteration, and it is 

expected that it will evolve in line with the 
new approach to Performance 
Management being embedded by the 
Council, as well as from feedback from 
senior officers and Members. 

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 9

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2020/11/SODC-Corporate-Plan-2020.pdf


3 
 

 

 

This Quarter, 01 July to 30 September 2021, saw the significant milestone of the Country moving to step four of the Government’s roadmap plan, 

which meant an end to the majority of restrictions that had been in place in England to help stop the rapid spread of Covid-19. Therefore, from 19 

July large scale events recommenced and residents could socialise with any number of people indoors. This final stage of the roadmap has 

important financial implications for the Council, with the full reopening of Cornerstone on 07 September and the potential for increased revenue 

through an anticipated increase of visitors to town centres and car parks again, as well as through the national rise in ‘staycations’ as people look 

to take holidays within the UK and explore areas closer to home, as international travel still holds some barriers and restrictions.  

With the 26th UN Climate Change Conference of the Parties (COP26) taking place in Quarter 3 of this year and the latest release from the IPCC 

in August 2021, outlying that observed increases in greenhouse gas concentrations since around 1750 have unequivocally been caused by 

human activities, Council commitment to addressing the climate emergency remains strong. Work has increased this Quarter on developing the 

Council’s Climate Action Plan, ready to launch towards the end of the year. 

The Council also responded to challenges with a national shortages of HGV drivers this Quarter and on 02 August agreed to the Council’s 

contractor, Biffa temporarily pausing garden waste collection services in order to ensure rubbish, recycling and food waste collections were 

prioritised for residents across the district. In line with the Council’s commitment in the Corporate Plan for openness and accountability an 

extraordinary full Council meeting was held on 24 September to discuss the issues impacting the garden waste service.  Following negotiations 

with the contractor, the garden waste collection service was resumed and customers’ current subscription to the service was extended by three 

months.  

The Council embedded its commitment to resident wellbeing this Quarter, through the creation of a new Community Wellbeing service area, as 

part of the Council’s service area realignment to help provide a more balanced distribution of responsibilities and resources across the Council’s 

structure and support delivery of the Corporate Plan priorities. The Community Wellbeing service area will continue to drive forward the work of 

the Community Hub, which delivers support to residents affected by the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic.  

Moreover, the Council’s commitment to wellbeing was extended this Quarter, to refugees arriving in the UK from Afghanistan, following the 

country’s fall back under the control of the Taliban. In August the Council pledged full support to work with other service providers to offer help to 

people from Afghanistan who are granted refugee status and pivoted the Community Hub to provide additional support. 

 

 

 

 

STRATEGIC CONTEXT 
 

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 9



4 
 

  

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS  Littering patrols in 

the district resulted 

in 2 litter Fixed 

Penalty Notices 

(FPNs) being issued 

2 fly-tipping prosecutions 

brought against individuals.  

A further 5 are pending 

15 new community 

employment plans 

in progress 
We have delivered 10 

emergency food parcels 

to residents in financial 

hardship or self-isolating 

due to COVID-19 

8 Neighbourhood Plans 

were adopted in Q2, 

which protect 25 Local 

Green Spaces and 13 

Public Open Green 

Spaces  

Community 

Infrastructure Levy 

funds collected by the 

end of Q2, ready to 

transfer to Parish 

Councils £605,146.76 

Community 

Infrastructure Levy 

balance: 

£7,422,895.73 

94 new homeless applications 

received, with a successful 

homelessness prevention rate 

of 91%. The average stay in 

temporary accommodation was 

7 days (compared to a 6-months 

rolling average of 41) 

24 new affordable 

homes were 

delivered in Q2 

In July, £60,000 was 

allocated to the Chalgrove 

Flood Alleviation Scheme 

by Individual Cabinet 

Member Decision 

19 Council meetings 

livestreamed and later 

uploaded to YouTube 

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 9



5 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Lead – Suzanne Malcolm – Deputy Chief Executive – Place  

Why?  

South Oxfordshire is a largely rural district, including parts of two Areas of Outstanding Natural 

Beauty (AONBs) and the Oxford Green Belt, as well as a long stretch of the River Thames. The 

natural world is proven to provide benefits to both mental and physical health, as well as having 

its own intrinsic value, and it needs our protection.  

So:  

We will respect and protect our natural environment, especially our Areas of Outstanding Natural 

Beauty (AONBs) and other nature rich areas. We will champion the opportunity to restore our 

natural world in both biodiverse and bio-depleted areas through nature recovery networks and 

other means. We will connect urban communities to their local green spaces and restore nature 

to urban environments. 

 

Key Activity in Q2:   

To progress the Council’s aim to protect and restore our natural world, this Quarter we have worked in partnership to further advance the 

establishment of the Local Nature Partnership (LNP). Terms of Reference for the LNP Board, a provisional budget and staffing structure have been 

developed and Board members have been recruited, ensuring strong foundations are in place to take forward the work of the Partnership for 

Oxfordshire.   

To further the Council’s commitment to recognising and supporting the vital role of farming, contact has been established this Quarter with the 

Farming in Protected Landscapes Programme, this programme seeks to fund projects that align with objectives around climate, nature, people and 

place. Through the Council providing promotional support for the scheme in South Oxfordshire, it will give those within the farming and land 

management sector the opportunity to obtain funding to progress projects which benefit landscape Areas of Outstanding Beauty. 

THEME 1. PROTECT AND RESTORE THE NATURAL WORLD 

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 9



6 
 

Moreover, this Quarter, the Council created a budget of £60,000 from Community Infrastructure Levy funding towards Mill Lane, Chalgrove Flood 

Alleviation Scheme. By implementing this scheme, the Council intends to support the reduction of flood risk in the local area and provide a safer 

community for residents.  

A new Policy for Planting Trees on Council Land was launched this Quarter. The policy outlines how the Council will protect, plant, and manage 

trees on the land we own and how community tree planting initiatives will be supported. The policy seeks to address the climate crisis and protect 

and restoring our natural world. Since the policy’s launch, the Council has received enquiries from three community groups interested in planting 

trees in the district. Applications will be assessed in Q3. 

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 9



7 
 

Performance Measures    

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description Measure 

Cabinet 
Lead 

Officer Lead Performance Update 

PRN1 

With partners, promote in-depth 
mapping and surveying of 
ecosystems across the district, 
planning for restoration of the 
natural world and working 
closely with landowners and 
specialist agencies 

Narrative report to include 
information on work with 
partners, and Habitat and 
Species data + 
changes/trends on a 
12month basis. 

Cllr Sue 
Cooper 

Head of 
Planning 

No progress to report Q2 2021/22 

PRN2 

Celebrate, protect and enhance 
our natural assets, including the 
River Thames and the AONBs 
and their setting, promoting our 
rural district for tourism, leisure 
and wellbeing 

Narrative report to include 
information on work to 
manage natural assets and 
ANOBs (both internally and 
with partners) 

Cllr Andrea 
Powell 

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

Economic Development have established contact with the Farming in 

Protected Landscapes Programme at the North Wessex Downs Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The programme is seeking to fund 

projects that align with the programme objectives around Climate, Nature, 

People and Place as well as the AONB Management Plan priorities. 

Applicants can be from the farming and land management sector and claim 

up to £250,000 on suitable projects. The Council will be providing 

promotional support for the scheme in South Oxfordshire via our 

Newsletter. During Q2 The River Thames Champion led on a 

communications campaign to mark World Rivers Day on 26 September. 

The council shared information to facilitate community groups in organising 

river clean up events and promoted the events that were organised.  

PRN3 

Encourage the use of natural 
processes to combat risks 
arising from climate change, 
such as meadows and trees to 
reduce flooding 

Narrative report to include 
direct and indirect 
information on use of 
natural processes to 
combat risks of climate 
change. This should include 
new policy development 
and direct activity 
undertaken by the Council. 

Cllr Sue 
Cooper 

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

During Q2 2021/22, the annual tree maintenance work continued – this will 

be completed during Q3. 

In addition, new sewage treatment tanks were installed at Moulsford and 

work began on the Chalgrove Flood Alleviation scheme. 

  

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 9



8 
 

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 

Performance Update 

PRN4 

Recognise and support the vital 
role of farming in economic and 
ecosystem resilience, local food 
provision and the recovery of 
soils and natural processes 

Narrative report on activity 
undertaken with partners to 
encourage and support the 
vital role of farming in 
economic and ecosystem 
resilience (where possible, 
although this may be 
implicitly included in the 
information above). 

Cllr Sue 
Cooper  

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

Economic Development have established contact with the Farming in 

Protected Landscapes Programme at the North Wessex Downs Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The programme is seeking to fund 

projects that align with the programme objectives around Climate, Nature, 

People and Place as well as the AONB Management Plan priorities. 

Applicants can be from the farming and land management sector and claim 

up to £250,000 on suitable projects. The Council will be providing 

promotional support for the scheme in South Oxfordshire via our 

Newsletter. 

PRN5 

Call for the establishment of a 
Local Nature Partnership for 
Oxfordshire to promote an 
ambitious nature recovery 
programme, including tree and 
meadow planting, rewilding and 
providing habitats for wildlife 
including wildlife corridors 

Narrative report - accepting 
that much of the activity to 
support PRN3 will be 
relevant here. 

Cllr Pieter-
Paul Barker   

Head of 
Policy 
and 
Programmes 

Continued progress has been made in the development of the Local Nature 

Partnership (LNP) during Q2 2021/22. Terms of Reference for the LNP 

Board have been prepared, a provisional budget and staffing structure have 

been created and Board members have been recruited. It has also been 

agreed that the LNP will be hosted by a local authority. 

The first Board meeting is planned for Q4 2021/22, and the recruitment of 

staff will be subject to the identification of funding for the proposed budget. 

PRN6 

Work in partnership with the 
Earth Trust, Chilterns 
Conservation Board, North 
Wessex Downs AONB, the 
Environment Agency and others 
to improve access to green 
spaces in and around our towns, 
reinforcing access to nature as a 
priority for community wellbeing 

  

Narrative report on activity 
with partners (including 
those named, and others), 
with a particular focus on 
work supporting the link 
between green spaces and 
community wellbeing. 

Cllr Pieter-
Paul Barker   

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

The Council continues to liaise with the Earth Trust and Didcot Town 

Council to initiate a partnership approach to accessing open space at Great 

Western Park. 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 9



9 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Lead – Adrianna Partridge – Deputy Chief Executive –  

Transformation and Operations 

 
Why?  
 
The complexity of modern society and local government structures can be hard to navigate. Many 
services are delivered as part of external partnerships, so it can be hard for residents to see what 
we do and how we do it. There are some groups within our district with whom we have little 
engagement or interaction, so the diversity of our district is not always recognised and supported.  
 
So:  
 
We will maintain and improve high levels of satisfaction with the services we provide and will 
reach out to all sectors and age groups to foster a culture of openness, participation, and 
representation. We will use our influence to champion inclusion, diversity and transparency 
across all elected and unelected bodies in our region. We will empower and invest in our staff 
and conduct our operations with the highest level of integrity and accountability. 
 
Key Activity in Q2:   
 
Work to enhance openness and accountability in the Council’s democratic decision-making process also progressed this Quarter.  All public 
Council meetings were livestreamed and then later uploaded to YouTube, additionally supporting the accessibility of Council meetings for 
residents. In addition, the Council’s Monitoring Officer has advised on the use of exemptions in reports to ensure that South Oxfordshire is as 
open and transparent in its decision-making processes as possible.  
 
To meet the Council’s commitment to openness and to encourage inclusiveness, engagement and participation, monthly strategic communications 
meetings were held with the Cabinet Member and the Leader of the Council to ensure proactive handling and promotion of committee decisions.   
 

THEME 2. OPENNESS AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

  

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 9



10 
 

In line with our aim to engage effectively with residents, Parish Councils and other community organisations, work has begun this Quarter on a 
Connecting Communities Strategy and a council wide Communications Strategy.  Draft communications plans are also underway to support the 
council's climate and housing corporate priorities.  
 
In order to deliver on the Council’s commitment to ensure high levels of satisfaction with the services we provide, this Quarter colleagues from 
across the council worked together to help resolve the challenges facing the Garden Waste service.  As part of this collaborative effort, the IT 
department developed a new web form which enabled customers to provide their e-mail addresses to the council in order for the Council to 
communicate directly with them in the future, thus enhancing the communications residents receive. Moreover, Customer Services were also able 
to provide informative feedback on the calls and e-mails that they received regarding the issues impacting the garden waste service. This insight, 
especially regarding the key questions and concerns of residents, was then used to frame the council’s communications response to the issue 
and share the most appropriate information.  
 
 
  

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 9



11 
 

Performance Measures   
 

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

OA1 

Enhance trust and 
accountability in democratic 
decision-making, including 
live-streaming and recording 
of meetings, ensuring full 
accessibility of facilities and 
monitoring progress in an 
open and transparent way 

Narrative update to include 
information on the performance 
management framework, 
communications update on 
Cabinet/Council decisions, IAG 
around the operations/activity 
of the Council 
 
% of Public Council meetings 
within 12 months available 
online 

Cllr Andrea 
Powell 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

During Q2 2021/22, all public Council meetings were livestreamed and then later 
uploaded to YouTube (19 meetings for the period – including those of the 
planning and scrutiny committees – are currently viewable). 
 
Monthly strategic communications meetings were held with the Cabinet Member 
and the Leader of the Council to ensure proactive handling of committee 
decisions. 

OA2 

Ensure that Council 
departments work 
collaboratively to deliver best 
outcomes for residents 

Narrative report detailing 
significant, non-recurring 
examples of inter-departmental 
working which have secured 
concrete outcomes for 
residents 

Cllr Andrea 
Powell 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

Colleagues from across the council worked together to help resolve the 
challenges facing the Garden Waste service during Q2 2021/22. As part of this 
collaborative effort, the IT department developed a new web form which enabled 
customers to provide their e-mail addresses to the council. This will allow the 
Vale to communicate directly with them in the future. 
 
Customer Services were able to provide informative feedback on the calls and e-
mails that they received. This insight, especially regarding the key questions and 
concerns of residents, was then used to frame the council’s comms response to 
the issue. 

OA3 

Embed an organisational 
culture that celebrates 
diversity, inclusion, and 
respect 

Narrative report on work 
undertaken to celebrate 
diversity, inclusion, and 
respect. Should include 
standard recurring activity, one 
off supporting activity. This 
should be a joint report 
primarily from HR/Comms but 
include comments from others/ 

Cllr 
Maggie 
Filipova-
Rivers 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

During Q2 2021/22, Comms activity has included: promoting Move Together (a 
campaign to encourage those who have been shielding or are anxious about 
participating in activities to get involved in order to support their mental and 
physical health), highlighting the Council’s support for Afghan refugees, 
showcasing events over the summer for children on free school meals and 
wishing staff and residents a happy and safe Eid Mubarak. 
 
In addition, the Cabinet also approved a new Diversity Calendar. 

  

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 9



12 
 

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

OA4 

Apply good governance and 
transparency in all our working 
and decision-making, 
exploring optimal structures 
and mechanisms for best 
practice in local government 

Narrative report on significant 
change initiatives which have 
resulted in restructures/new 
processes to deliver local govt 
services. 

Cllr Sue 
Cooper 

Head of 
Legal & 
Democratic 

There is ongoing work to facilitate remote meeting where it is legally permissible 
to do so - i.e. where no formal decisions are being made. 
 
In addition, the Council’s Monitoring Officer has been advising on the use of 
exemptions in reports. This is to help ensure that south Oxfordshire is as open 
and transparent in its decision-making processes as possible. 
 
Training on governance and good decision making for councillors and officers is 
planned for Q3 2021/22. 

OA5 

Engage effectively with 
residents, Parish and Town 
Councils and other community 
organisations, using plain 
English in our communications 
and using appropriate 
methods and technologies to 
ensure equal and fair access 
for all 

Narrative report on activities 
communications/engagement 
specific activities 

Cllr 
Maggie 
Filipova-
Rivers 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

Work has begun on a Connecting Communities Strategy and a council wide 
Communications Strategy.  Draft communications plans are also underway to 
support the council's climate and housing corporate priorities. 
 
Between July and September, the Council sent out 3 Town and Parish updates. 
It also sent 31 messages to town and parish councils including press releases 
and specific updates on issues such as garden waste and the Women’s Cycling 
Tour. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 9



13 
 

Individual Cabinet Member Decisions - 01 July – 30 September 2021 

Date  Description  
01/07/2021  Chalgrove Flood Alleviation Scheme  

15/07/2021  Test and Trace support payments – amended scheme  

15/07/2021  UK Resettlement Scheme  

15/07/2021 Chalgrove Flood Alleviation Scheme 

03/08/2021  Chinnor Rugby Club – s106 funds  

06/08/2021  Greys Road public convenience at Henley  

10/08/2021  Delegated Officer decision – Joint Local Plan Governance Arrangements  

18/08/2021  Afghan Locally Employed Staff Resettlement Scheme 

19/08/2021  Great Western Park transfer of open space  

01/09/2021  UK Resettlement Scheme 

01/09/2021 Public art project in Thame  

01/09/2021 Joint Statement of Community Involvement  

04/09/2021  Car Park Order  

05/09/2021  Insurance Services Contract 

08/09/2021  Wallingford CCTV cameras  

10/09/2021  S106 Funding for Wallingford Town Council 

21/09/2021  Lease of 135 Milton Park  

21/09/2021 Revenue Grants Policy  

21/09/2021 Revenue Grants Policy – appendix  

28/09/2021  Crowmarsh Neighbourhood Plan  

29/09/2021  Increased participation in the Afghan Citizens Resettlement Scheme   

TOTAL: 21 
 

  

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 9



14 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Lead – Suzanne Malcolm – Deputy Chief Executive – Place  

Why?  
 
The greatest challenge we face as a society is the Climate Emergency and our ability to adapt 
our lives and our behaviours to ensure a safe and resilient future. While statements and targets 
are welcome, the challenge for our district is to take action, transform our operations and inspire 
our residents and businesses to do the same. Aspects of our lives will need to change, but we 
have a duty to make this transition fair for all parts of society.  
 
So:  
 
We will show leadership by developing and implementing a climate change programme to make 
the Council net carbon neutral by 2025. We will help our communities to plan a fair transition to 
a future that will be defined by climate change. 
 
Key Activity in Q2:  
 
The need to tackle the climate emergency requires the Council to evaluate how we do things and take action across our operations. This Quarter, 

climate officers met with Heads of Service individually, to ascertain what actions could be taken within each service, to help the council reach its 

climate emergency targets. These meetings resulted in proposed actions which are currently going through a challenge process to ensure that 

they are as robust as possible. This work will feed directly into the council’s Climate Action Plan (CAP). 

 

Good progress has been made on the CAP throughout this Quarter. To ensure the plan has the greatest possible impact and is seen as an integral 

part of the council’s operations, work commenced to ensure that it visually aligns with the Corporate Plan.  

 

Additionally, this Quarter the Council ran at least 47 informational campaigns and communications activities that encouraged behaviour change 

across a range of subjects, including supporting residents to consider and protect the environment; for example, in August, the Council promoted 

Litter Bug activity trails across the district, encouraging children to think about and look after their local environment. These activities sat alongside 

THEME 3. ACTION ON THE CLIMATE EMERGENCY 

  

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 9



15 
 

a broader communications campaign to encourage residents safely back to the district’s towns and villages after lockdown restrictions. This 

campaign was shortlisted for the Best Covid Campaign award by the Chartered Institute of Public Relations. Building on these campaigns, plans 

have progressed this Quarter for a reuse and reduce waste campaign and discussions are ongoing with our local authority partners on some 

shared behavioural change activities in relation to climate change. 

 

To progress the Council’s aim to support and encourage local businesses to respond to climate change and nature recovery, this Quarter the 

Economic Development team held an Eco Business Fair in Henley-on-Thames with Vale and partners Greentech and Naked Planet. Around 150 

visitors attended the event – including councillors and reporters from a local newspaper. The team plan to build on this work as well as the ‘circular 

economy’ and ‘sustainable construction’ workshops it held for local businesses in Q1. To that end, a draft campaign has been prepared for a six-

week campaign in Q3, to encourage businesses to reduce their Digital Carbon Footprint.  

 

To develop the Council’s commitment to ensure net-zero standard homes across the district, this Quarter the Council worked with partners to 

develop a masterplan for Didcot to achieve a range of carbon neutral and carbon reducing work, including in residential developments. In addition, 

the report identifying the potential to develop PassivHaus standard affordable homes at 116-120 Broadway was agreed at Cabinet this Quarter, 

in September. 

 

Moreover, improving opportunities for active travel in the district is an important aspect of tacking the climate emergency and this Quarter, the 

Garden Communities Team actively worked in partnership with the County Council to update the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy to include 

active travel projects. 

 

Work to monitor and improve air quality around the district is another important area of work for the Council. This Quarter the Council received its 

2021 Air Quality Annual Status Reports appraisal from Defra; they have concluded that the Council’s reports are well structured, detailed and 

provide the information specified in their guidance.  

In line with our commitment to engage with partners across Oxfordshire and exercise influence where required, during Q2 through its 

representation on the Future Oxfordshire Partnership Environment Advisory Group., the Council has worked with partners on wider policy matters 

relating to climate and the environment. The South and Vale joint scrutiny retrofit task and finish group presented a report to members of the 

CEEAC. Their findings and recommendations were welcomed by the committee and the report has now been circulated to neighbouring authorities 

on the Advisory Group. 

  

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 9



16 
 

Performance Measures   

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead Performance Update 

ACE1 

Achieve our own zero carbon 
target by 2025 and support 
others to achieve the district 
target of zero carbon by 2030 

Narrative report on strategic 
projects which will help to 
deliver net zero carbon for 
2025/2030. This should be 
split between Council specific 
and District specific activities. 

Cllr Sue 
Cooper  

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

The Council is working with key partners to develop a masterplan for Didcot to 
achieve a range of carbon neutral / reduced carbon work (including in 
residential developments). 

ACE2 

Develop an annually 
approved climate emergency 
programme and adequately 
finance it 

Quantitative measure - 
delivery of an annual CEP 
Y/N 

Cllr Sue 
Cooper  

Head of 
Policy & 
Programmes 

During Q2 2021/22, significant progress was made on the development of the 
Climate Action Plan (CAP). The Climate team met individually with Heads of 
Service to discuss how their service areas can help South Oxfordshire reduce 
its emissions. As a result of these meetings, every Head of Service has now 
tabled a series of proposed measures which will assist the council on its journey 
to net zero. These are currently, undergoing a challenge process to ensure that 
they are robust.  
 
In addition, design work on the CAP has also commenced to ensure that it 
visually aligns with the Corporate Plan and, therefore, delivers a greater impact. 

ACE3 

Deliver Council-owned net-
zero homes and use grants, 
planning policy and advocacy 
to ensure the same standards 
throughout the district 

Narrative Update on the 
current activities which will 
result in the delivery of 
Council owned homes (and 
details of those homes where 
possible) 

Cllr Robin 
Bennett 

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

A report on the potential to develop PassivHaus affordable homes at 116-120 
Broadway, Didcot was agreed at South Cabinet in September. The next stages 
will be to procure a design team and achieve a planning submission. 

 

  

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 9



17 
 

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure Cabinet 
Lead 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

ACE4 

Promote and encourage 
behavioural change with 
informational campaigns and 
leading by example 

Narrative update to include 
the number of 
communications campaigns 
undertaken which 
promote/encourage 
behavioural change (with 
examples). 

Cllr 
Andrea 
Powell  

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

During Q2 2021/22, South Oxfordshire ran at least 47 informational campaigns 

and communications activities that encouraged behaviour change across a 

range of subjects – examples include the Big Green Week, Litterbugs and 

Xplorer to inspire people to get outdoors, get active and help the environment. 

The Council also undertook a marketing exercise to encourage people safely 

back to the district’s towns and villages – this was finalised for a CIPR award for 

Best Covid Campaign. 

 

Plans are currently underway for a reuse and reduce waste campaign and 

discussions are ongoing with our local authority partners on some shared 

behavioural change activities in relation to climate change. 

 

Throughout the quarter, work also continued on supporting system wide and 

national behaviour campaigns to tackle the pandemic. This included 

encouraging people to get jabbed, take LFR and PCR tests and if necessary 

self-isolate. 

ACE5 

Take positive action on 
single-use plastics, air quality 
improvement measures and 
sustainable transport 

Suggested combined 
narrative update on Comms 
relating to single use 
plastics/comms relating to AQ 
initiatives and metrics relating 
to AQ (with an appreciation 
that this data will be skewed 
in 2020 due to lockdown(s) 

Cllr David 
Rouane 

Head of 
Housing & 
Environment 

Responses to HM Government’s consultations on the Extended Producer 

Responsibility, the Deposit Return Scheme and the Consistency of Collections 

were submitted on time.  

 

South Oxfordshire has received its 2021 Air Quality Annual Status Reports 

appraisal letter from Defra. They have concluded that the reports are well 

structured, detailed and provide the information specified in their guidance – the 

full commentary will be made available on the Council’s website. 

ACE6 

Mitigate climate change 
through planning and land 
use, enhancing biodiversity 
on our own land and 
strengthening the planning 
system to enforce 
environmental standards 

Narrative update to focus on 
planning initiatives which 
support the potential 
deliverables where possible 
(primarily the development of 
the joint 2041 Local Plan, the 
joint Design Guide and 
carbon reduction in planning  
(DES8/10) 

Cllr Anne-
Marie 
Simpson  

Head of 
Planning 

Work on the Joint Local Plan and the Design Guide is currently progressing. 

The new Tree Planting Policy affecting council land was adopted during Q2 

2021/22. 

 

  

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 9



18 
 

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure Cabinet 
Lead 

Officer Lead Performance Update 

ACE7 

Promote the circular economy 
(reduce, re-use and recycle), 
including in our waste 
management contracts 

Narrative measure on comms 
activity relating to 
waste/recycling 
 
Quantitative information on 
recycling rate, contamination 
rates, % of residual waste to 
landfill 

Cllr David 
Rouane 

Head of 
Housing & 
Environment 

No progress to report Q2 2021/22 

ACE8 

Support and encourage local 
businesses to respond to 
climate change and nature 
recovery 

Narrative update on the 
influencing work undertaken 
to support and encourage 
local businesses relating to 
climate change and nature 
recovery 

Cllr Robin 
Bennett 

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

In September, Economic Development held an Eco Business Fair in Henley-on-
Thames with Vale, Greentech and Naked Planet. 28 businesses exhibited and 
8 presentations took place (including ones from Low Carbon Hub and Energy 
Solutions Oxfordshire).  Around 150 visitors attended the event – including 
councillors and the Henley Herald. 
 
Discussions have taken place regarding adding environmental targets to 
Community Employment Plans. 
 
In Q3 2021/22, the Economic Development team plan to undertake a six-week 
campaign to encourage businesses to reduce their Digital Carbon Footprint. In 
order to facilitate this work, a campaign draft (and accompanying assets) was 
produced during Q2 2021/22 (in partnership with Sustainable Results Lab). 
 
In addition, Economic Development’s Autumn Business Survey (launched in 
Q2) includes a focus on the move to net zero and the barriers to doing so. A 
data report confirming survey results will be available in Q3 2021/22. 

ACE9 
Promote waste minimisation 
initiatives such as Repair 
Cafés 

Unless specific activity 
relating to Repair Café's and 
Freecycle can be reported 
on, suggest that this is 
covered in previous 
narratives 

Cllr David 
Rouane 

Head of 
Housing & 
Environment 

No progress to report Q2 2021/22 

ACE10 

Work with Oxfordshire County 
Council to build on our 
commitment to active travel 
including walking, public 
transport and cycling 
infrastructure 

Narrative update on work with 
Oxford County Council 
 
Optional Quantitative metrics 
on the amount of new 
footpaths/cycle paths  

Cllr Pieter-
Paul 
Barker  

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

Work is ongoing on scoping a draft Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure 
Plan for Didcot and its environs. Members will be consulted on this in Q3 
2021/22. 
 
The Garden Communities Team have been actively working with the County 
Council to update the Oxfordshire Infrastructure Strategy to include active travel 
projects. 
 
A bid to fund a cycleway from Berinsfield to Oxford was submitted to the 
Levelling Up Fund.  

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 9



19 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Leads – Suzanne Malcolm - Deputy Chief Executive – Place 

Adrianna Partridge – Deputy Chief Executive Transformation and Operations  

 

Why?  

 

South Oxfordshire has a large number of small and micro businesses and is well placed to adapt 

to changes in the economy, but support will be needed for it to remain a healthy and vibrant place 

to live and work. The Coronavirus pandemic has shown the strength of the community but there 

are areas of isolation and deprivation in our district, and the benefits of access to culture, leisure, 

and community for all has been made clear.  

 

So:  

 

We will reimagine our high streets, helping independent small businesses to thrive and to 

encourage cultural well-being for all. We will encourage clean local economic development and 

support our business hubs, centres of scientific excellence and our educational establishments 

to become leaders in sustainable technology, innovation, and enterprise.  We will help our 

community groups to strengthen cohesion, reduce social isolation and tackle areas of deprivation. 

 

Key Activity in Q2:    

This Quarter the Council continued to collaborate with regional partners on the ‘Meanwhile in Oxfordshire’ project, which aims to bring vacant 

properties back into use, to support the Council’s aim to avoid the blight of “dormitory towns”.  

To support small and independent businesses that were hit hard by the COVID-19 restrictions and encourage economic recovery, this Quarter the 

Economic Development team have carried on distributing business support grants; a total of £4.2 million in Additional Restrictions Grants were 

THEME 4. IMPROVED ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING 
  

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 9



20 
 

paid to local businesses as of 30 September. The Council also launched an Autumn Business Survey this Quarter which will help to inform future 

grant assistance. The findings will help shape support going forwards and ensure support offered by the Council meets the need of local businesses. 

By the end of this Quarter, a total of £605,147.76 in Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funds was collected, which will be paid to all eligible 

Parish Councils in Q3. This Quarter communications were made with Parish Councils to answer queries around the use of the funding and the 

payment process; these funds will help support positive outcomes for residents in the District. 

In order to preserve the Council’s green spaces for the benefit of local communities, so far in 2021/22 we have encouraged and overseen the 

adoption of 8 neighbourhood plans. Taken together, 6 out of 8 of these plans design 25 Local Green Spaces, which are granted the highest level 

of protection possible by planning policy. An additional 3 plans include policies that protect a further 13 public open green spaces from harmful 

development. 

To ensure the Council’s commitment to take enforcement action where appropriate, littering patrols around South Oxfordshire were conducted this 

Quarter and resulted in two Fixed Penalty Notices being issued in Q2. Moreover, Between July and August, 130 fly-tipping incidents were recorded, 

which is lower than the 146 reported in the same period in 2020.  

 

 

  

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 9



21 
 

Performance Measures  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

£5,518,470 

£4,278,919 

£1,239,551 

Additional Restrictions Grants

Total allocation Total paid to date

Remaining funds

Chart A ECW2: Financial support to businesses 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 9



22 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chart B.1 and B.2 ECW7: Fly-tipping activity and number of abandoned vehicles 

130

185

146

289

Q2 (July and August only)

Q1

Fly-tipping 

2020 2021

5

38

36

15

Reports of abandoned vehicles - case status

Removed vehicles Vehicles not on site

Vehicles not abandoned Still under investigation

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 9



23 
 

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead Performance Update 

ECW1 

Partner with regional 
agencies to ensure 
economic recovery, quality 
employment, thriving 
businesses and vibrant 
communities, avoiding the 
blight of “dormitory towns” 

Narrative report on work with 
partners in this area 
 
Quantitative metrics relating 
to employment rates (trends, 
actuals) - unemployment rate, 
trajectory/trend, earnings 
information 

Cllr Pieter-
Paul 
Barker 

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

Officers continue to attend the Joint Oxfordshire Business Support meetings to plan 
the economic recovery from the pandemic. The Council also continue to support the 
‘Meanwhile in Oxfordshire’ project which brings vacant premises back into use. 

ECW2 

Provide advice on access 
to grants, training and 
diversification 
programmes, helping local 
businesses to build agility 
and resilience 

Quantitative measures - 
number of businesses we 
engage with, social media 
hits, newsletter subscribers, 
clickthrough rate, numbers of 
business grants awarded  

Cllr Robin 
Bennett 

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

Up to the end of Q2 2021/22, the Economic Development team paid out £4,278,919 
to businesses from South Oxfordshire’s Additional Restrictions Grant Fund allocation.  
Please see Chart A ECW2. page 20  
 
On 7 September, the Council launched an Autumn Business Survey which will help to 
inform future grant assistance. An internal data report on its findings will be made 
available during Q3 2021/22. 
 
In addition, 28 new learner groups have been added to the IDEA programme by 
Economic Development. This should equate to 200 new users improving their digital 
skills in the next academic year. 
 
Across South and Vale, there are a potential 15 Community Employment Plans in the 
pipeline. These are managed by Economic Development in partnership with OxLEP. 
 
Over 300 new support requests were received in Q2 2021/22 (there was a decrease 
in the summer period due to the holidays). 
 
SVBS Website visits remain steady – there are over 1000 visits per month. 

ECW3 

Plan for communities 
connected by walking & 
cycling networks, with 
sustainable, accessible 
and affordable public 
transport and reliable 
Broadband, learning the 
lessons from the Covid-19 
experience and enabling 
more home-working. 

Narrative update on work 
support reliable broadband 
(where possible) 
 
Narrative update on transport 
initiatives 
 
Quantitative - new 
footpath/cycle paths delivered 

Cllr Anne-
Marie 
Simpson  

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

The future of Berinsfield Garden Village is being actively shaped via the council’s 
planning policies – it is due to enter the master planning phase next year. The 
ambition is for Berinsfield to have good sustainable connectivity (both within and 
without), community facilities and transport hubs. –  Plans are also being put in place 
to establish green corridors within Berinsfield. These will help to protect/conserve 
nature and create a more welcoming environment for pedestrians and cyclists. 
More broadly, the council has continued to promote the use of public transport and 
other measures (such as car clubs) that will help to reduce reliance on personal motor 
vehicles. 

 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 9



24 
 

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
 

Cabinet 
Lead  

 

Officer Lead  
 

Performance Update 

ECW4 

Launch a new community 
wellbeing strategy to 
encourage and support 
culture, leisure and the 
arts 

Approval/Launch of 
'Community Wellbeing 
Strategy' Y/N (document 
should encompass large 
parts of information above) 

Cllr 
Maggie 
Fillipova-
Rivers  

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

A new Community Wellbeing service has been created as part of the council’s 
structural realignment. This will drive forward the work on a new community wellbeing 
strategy. 

ECW5 

Use our planning powers 
to preserve our valuable 
green spaces, particularly 
in urban areas  

Number of Neighbourhood 
Plans implemented/green 
spaces secured 

Cllr Anne-
Marie 
Simpson  

Head of 
Planning 

Eight Neighbourhood Plans have been adopted in South Oxfordshire during 2021/22. 
Six of these designated a combined total of 25 Local Green Spaces (these offer the 
highest level of protection possible in planning policy). In addition, three of these 
Neighbourhood Plans included policies to protect 13 public open green spaces (these 
are sites which, while not meeting the tests to be designated as Local Green Spaces, 
are still considered to be worthy of protection from harmful development).    

ECW6 

Work with our 
communities to maximise 
Community Infrastructure 
Levy funds and to allocate 
these to achieve best 
outcomes for residents in 
the District 

Narrative update about work 
in this area to include detail of 
new CIL spending strategy, 
communication with parishes 
 
Quantitative elements - CIL 
Spend broken down by type, 
by parish 

Cllr Robin 
Bennett 

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

The CIL charging schedule is currently being reviewed by the planning and planning 
policy teams. 
 
The October release of CIL funds for parish councils is underway and those that are 
due CIL funding will receive their payment at end of October. The total amount of 
funds to be transferred is £605,146.76. This process has been communicated to all 
eligible parish councils and officers are available to respond to queries on how their 
allocations can be used. 

ECW7 
Take enforcement action 
on fly-tipping and dog 
fouling 

Small narrative on Fly 
Tipping/dog fowling activity 
(with Comms input on any 
campaigns) 
 
Qualitative data on fly tipping 
- what we collect, where from, 
how much, nature of 
enforcement action 
undertaken, hotspot map. 

Cllr David 
Rouane 

Head of 
Housing & 
Environment 

In July and August 2021, there were 130 fly-tips reported (the fly-tipping figures for 
September 2021 are not yet available). This was slightly lower than the 146 reported 
in the same period last year. 
 
During Q2 2021/22, littering patrols in the district resulted in two litter Fixed Penalty 
Notices (FPNs) being issued. 
 
South Oxfordshire received 94 reports of abandoned vehicles during Quarter 2. Of 
these: 38 were not on site at the time officers visited, 35 were not considered 
abandoned and five were removed. The remainder (16) are still under investigation. 
 
Two fly-tipping prosecutions were brought against individuals between Jul-Sept 2021. 
There are a further five pending fly-tipping prosecutions. In addition, seven FPNs 
were issued during Q2 2021/22 for waste crime offences. Ten ‘Duty of Care’ 
inspections were also completed, and three warning letters were sent relating to 
waste. 
 
Please see Charts B.1 and B.2 ECW2. page 21 
 

 

  

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 9



25 
 

Corporate 

Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 

description 
Measure 

Cabinet 

Lead  

Officer 

Lead  
Performance Update 

ECW8 

Work with local partners to 

introduce civil parking 

enforcement as a district 

responsibility 

Narrative update on progress 
Cllr David 

Rouane 

Head of 

Housing & 

Environment 

Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) is on track to commence on 1 November 2021. This 

will be a soft launch, where in the first instance advisory notes will be issued rather 

than Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs).  

 

As part of the new CPE implementation, the first meeting of the steering group of lead 

members and officers has been scheduled for early October. This group is intended 

to: 

• •support the initial roll out of the project across South, Vale and Cherwell. 

• •make strategic decisions to steer CPE and on-going management and 
parking strategies. 

• •create a cohesive and consistent approach to on-street parking across the 
districts. 

  

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 9



26 
 

 

 

Strategic Lead – Suzanne Malcolm – Deputy Chief Executive – Place 

Why?  

The average price of a home is many times higher than the average salary, particularly for the 

young, and renting is also expensive. The pressure to build new homes in our district sometimes 

outweighs local wishes. Infrastructure like roads, schools and GP surgeries have not kept up with 

housing development. Too many houses being built today are not fit for a low carbon future.  

So: 

We will strive to ensure that new homes and infrastructure in South Oxfordshire meet local needs, 

are sustainable, zero carbon in their build and operation, and high quality in design. We will 

provide homes that people can afford to live in. New developments will be accessible with walking, 

cycling and public transport a priority. Neighbourhood plans and local participation will sit at the 

heart of our planning process. We will work with partners to ensure that development is 

appropriate for our communities. 

Key Activity in Q2:  

The Council’s Masterplanning Lead and Garden Town and Village initiatives for Didcot and Berinsfield continue to be at the forefront of our progress 

to deliver the homes and infrastructures that people need. This Quarter, discussions with the local landowners and Homes England have continued 

and the inaugural meeting of the Garden Village’s Steering Group’s Communications sub-group was held. Officers also conducted a tour for local 

councillors of Berinsfield village and the project’s key sites. Engagement has been held with local community organisations, and two large public 

events took place to understand their funding requirements and gain feedback to guide future decisions. The terms for a Community Investment 

Scheme to regenerate Berinsfield has been approved by Full Council, demonstrating that the Council are working towards transforming Berinsfield 

into a thriving Garden Village with improved facilities developed in line with the community’s needs and aspirations. 

This Quarter the Council’s Electric Vehicle (EV) park and charge project continued to make progress towards an Individual Cabinet Member 

Decision, which once agreed will increase EV capacity and reduce car dependency and air pollution across both South and Vale. 

THEME 5. HOMES AND INFRASTRUCTURES THAT MEET LOCAL NEEDS 
  

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 9



27 
 

To progress the Council’s aim to support and encourage the retrofit of our existing housing stock for low-carbon performance and to eliminate fuel 

poverty, a review of the retrofit landscape across the district was completed this Quarter. The findings and recommendations from the review will 

be shared with the Future Oxfordshire Partnership - Environment Advisory Group as part of a potential coordinated programme of work across 

Oxfordshire.  

The Council continues to deliver on our commitment for new developments to prioritise access by walking, cycling and public transport; during this 

Quarter a project scope and brief was developed for the Didcot Garden Town Local Cycling, Walking and Infrastructure Plan and a procurement 

exercise to appoint a contractor to support its completion was initiated.  Phase 1 of the Science Vale Active Travel Network has now also been 

completed and a feasibility assessment of Phase 2 will commence shortly.   

Moreover, this Quarter, the Council undertook work to lobby HM Government for a fairer Public Decarbonisation scheme. Further officers have 

been working with external support on developing a ‘model’ example of a bid to submit in future rounds of this scheme. This provides a good 

foundation towards ensuring that our teams are ready to access or signpost to any Government schemes or funding that is made available. 

A key challenge for South Oxfordshire in terms of housing, is delivering new homes which meet local needs. During July and August of 2021, 24 

affordable properties were delivered. In comparison with Q1, more one-bedroom homes were made available for affordable rent this Quarter. 

However, it should be noted that over the life of a development, different dwelling and tenure types will be delivered at varying rates.   

The Council continue to deliver a range of work to eliminate homelessness and rough sleeping across the district. This Quarter two thirds of the 

Housing First (HF) phase 2 rough sleepers have moved into their properties and the final third are waiting for suitable accommodation.  All of the 

residents from HF phase 1 have remained in their properties. The Council are also working in partnership, county wide, to procure homelessness 

services to eliminate rough sleeping in Oxfordshire. 

 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 9



28 
 

Performance Measures  

Corporate 

Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 

description 
Measure 

 
Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead Performance Update 

HILN1 

Didcot Garden Town 
priority projects as 
identified by the Advisory 
Board, specifically a 
sustainable plan to 
redevelop the Didcot 
Gateway site, a public 
transport and active 
walking and cycling 
network, community 
facilities and accessible 
green spaces for Didcot 
residents 

Narrative update against 
the stated aim, to include 
as many of the potential 
deliverables as possible, 
but not limited in scope to 
this. 

Cllr David 
Rouane 

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

During Q2 2021/22, a project scope and brief was developed for the Didcot Garden 

Town Local Cycling, Walking and Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP). The Garden Town 

team are now undertaking a procurement exercise to appoint a contractor to support 

its completion. The LCWIP, once approved and adopted, will support the 

implementation of the cycling network strategies identified in the Garden Town 

Delivery Plan. 

 

Phase 1 of the Science Vale Active Travel Network has now been completed 

(feasibility work on Phase 2 will commence shortly). A wayfinding project is currently 

underway to name the Phase 1 routes and connect them to the local area. 

The MultiCav consortium (of which Didcot Garden Town is part) continued to 

advance their work on an autonomous vehicle pilot during quarter 2. This is 

scheduled to run from Milton Park to Didcot Parkway during Q4 2021/22. 

HILN2 

The transformation of 
Berinsfield into a thriving 
Garden Village with 
improved facilities that are 
developed in line with the 
community’s needs and 
aspirations 

Narrative update against 
the stated aim, to include 
as many of the potential 
deliverables as possible, 
but not limited in scope to 
this. 

Cllr Robin 
Bennett 

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

Negotiations for a heads-of-terms agreement for land development continued to be 

held between South Oxfordshire and the landowner’s agents – routine meetings 

were also held between the Council and Homes England.  

 

A meeting of the Garden Village’s Steering Group was held in July, and the 

inaugural meeting of the Comms Group took place in September. Officers also 

conducted a tour for local councillors of the village and the project’s key sites.  

 

Discussions were held with local community organisations to understand their 

funding requirements. This information will be used to shape a planned grants 

project. 

 

Officers also participated in two large public events. At these gatherings, they 

shared information regarding the Garden Village (as well as presenting possible 

logos) for the project. Feedback from residents has/will be used to guide future 

decisions.  

 

In addition, an update on the regeneration of Berinsfield and the terms for a 

Community Investment Scheme were agreed by both the Cabinet and Full Council. 

 

 

 

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 9



29 
 

 
Corporate 

Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

 
Measure 

Cabinet 
Lead 

 
Officer Lead 

Performance Update 

HILN3 

New Council-owned homes 
with a focus on quality of 
design, affordability and 
local requirements 

Narrative Update on the 
current activities which 
WILL result in the delivery 
of Council owned homes 
(and details of those 
homes where possible). 
Also reporting on progress 
of Design Guide. 

Cllr Robin 
Bennett 

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

No progress to report Q2 2021/22. 

HILN4 

Support and 
encouragement for the 
retrofit of our existing 
housing stock for low-
carbon performance and to 
eliminate fuel poverty 

Narrative update on 
current/completed activities 
and influencing activity.  

Cllr Sue 
Cooper 

Head of Policy 
& Programmes 

The joint retrofit task and finish group report was presented by members to the 

CEEAC. Their findings and recommendations were welcomed by the committee.  

 

The report has also been circulated to neighbouring authorities as part of the Future 

Oxfordshire Partnership - Environment Advisory Group for their review. There is a 

broad consensus on the Advisory Group that, in order to make progress, a co-

ordinated programme of work in relation to retrofitting in Oxfordshire is required. At 

their meeting in Q3 2021/22, the Group will, therefore, receive a presentation 

(delivered by officers from South and Vale) on retrofit, current capital schemes and 

potential next steps.    

HILN5 
Elimination of 
homelessness in our 
District 

Narrative update on 
progress in this area 
 
Quantitative information on 
homelessness rates, 
homeless cases and TA 
numbers, length of stay in 
TA and effectiveness of 
interventions (avoided 
homelessness) 

Cllr David 
Rouane  

Head of 
Housing & 
Environment 

Four of the six Housing First (HF) phase 2 rough sleepers have moved into their 
properties. They are now being supported within their accommodation. The final two 
candidates have been identified and are waiting for suitable properties from SOHA 
housing. 
 
The six residents from HF phase 1 remain in their properties and are continuing to 
receive ongoing support. 
 
South Oxfordshire are actively participating in delivering the countywide 
homelessness and rough sleeping strategy. In addition, the council is also a 
member of the countywide commissioning group that are procuring homelessness 
services with the aim of ending rough sleeping in Oxfordshire.  
 
During Q2 2021/22: 

• the Council dealt with 94 new homeless cases.  

• the average length of stay in emergency accommodation was 7 days 
(compared to the 6-month rolling average of 41 days). 

• South had a successful homelessness prevention rate of 91%. 

  

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 9



30 
 

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 

Performance Update 

HILN6 
Bringing empty properties 
back into use 

 
Narrative update on any 
relevant initiatives to 
reduce the number of 
empty properties and any 
data on empty property 
levels in South Oxfordshire  

Cllr David 
Rouane 

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

During Q2 2021/22, the Economic Development team continued to receive enquiries 

for vacant premises throughout South Oxfordshire. These were referred to the 

‘Meanwhile in Oxfordshire’ project accordingly. The latest available data suggested 

that there were 60 premises under discussion in the region as part of ‘Meanwhile in 

Oxfordshire’ but that no new occupations had been recorded.   

HILN7 

Ensuring that our teams 
are ready to access or 
signpost to any 
Government schemes or 
funding that is made 
available 

Narrative update on 
signposting activity and if 
possible, update on take-
up. 

Cllr Robin 
Bennett 

Head of Policy 
& Programmes 

Insight and Policy continue to provide support in signposting and scanning for 

external funding opportunities, we are looking to further enhance the external 

funding capacity within the Council by bringing in a specialist bid-writer. If we are not 

successful in securing additional resource to strengthen this area, the plan is to roll 

out bid training to relevant officers (as was previously proposed). 

 

One of the main challenges facing South Oxfordshire in respects of securing 

external funding, is the nature of HM Government funding announcements (and the 

timeframes given to local authorities). During Q3 2021/22, as part of lobbying for a 

fairer scheme for Public Sector Decarbonisation, we will reiterate the message that 

councils are well placed to deliver and provide local leadership, but that they need 

long-term funding arrangements that encourages support and collaboration rather 

than a competitive bidding process. 

 

Officers are also undertaking speculative bid preparation work. This will provide both 

councils with a ‘model’ bid to submit into future rounds of the Public Sector 

Decarbonisation Scheme. It will also provide an example of what a strong bid looks 

like.     

HILN8 

New homes are future-
proofed, meeting the 
highest environmental 
standards and enhancing 
nature through sensitive, 
high quality design 

Narrative update around 
refresh of the design guide, 
local plan, and information 
around DES10 

Cllr Anne-
Marie 
Simpson  

Head of 
Planning 

The Joint Design Guide (JDG) Supplementary Planning Document has been drafted 

for public consultation. This engagement exercise will commence in October, with 

the scheduled adoption of the JDG Supplementary Planning Document planned for 

Q4 2021/22. The new JDG incorporates updated guidance on zero and low carbon 

construction. 

 

The DES10 (Carbon Reduction) Guidance Note has been prepared and published. 

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 9



31 
 

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead Performance Update 

HILN9 
Spatial planning embeds 
public health, wellbeing and 
sustainability 

Narrative update on work 
around planning 
reinforcing wellbeing and 
sustainability. This should 
include 'health-based 
planning data' where 
possible - information on 
public gym equipment - 
footpaths, cycle paths etc.  

Cllr Pieter-
Paul 
Barker  

Head of 
Planning 

The Oxfordshire Plan Regulation 18 (2) consultation was approved by South (and 

the other councils in Oxfordshire) for consultation from July to October 2021. The 

consultation document set out a range of policy options relating to health, wellbeing 

and sustainability within theme 3 (creating strong and sustainable communities). 

HILN10 
Changes over time in our 
stock of homes meet local 
needs 

Narrative update based on 
information available from 
3rd parties and the impact 
this has on the local area 
 
Bedroom mix in new 
developments breakdown 
every 6 months 

Cllr Anne-
Marie 
Simpson  

Head of 
Planning 

During July and August of 2021, 24 affordable properties have been reported as 

delivered – a quarterly total, including September, will be available towards the end 

of October. The cumulative total of affordable homes delivered during 2021/22 (Apr-

Aug) so far stands at 120. 

 

In comparison with Q1, more 1-bedroom homes have been made available for 

affordable rent. It should, however, be noted that over the life of a development, 

different dwelling and tenure types will be delivered at varying rates, depending 

upon the developer’s build programme. 

HILN11 

Sustainable transport 
solutions prioritise walking, 
cycling and public transport 
to reduce car dependency 
and air pollution 

Narrative update on 
overall progress relating to 
sustainable transport 
solutions - particularly EV 
elements. 

Cllr Pieter-
Paul 
Barker  

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

During Q2 2021/22, the EV park and charge project continued to make progress 

towards an Individual Cabinet Member Decision. Once agreed it will represent a 

positive step forward in EV capacity across both South and Vale. 

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 9



32 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Lead – Simon Hewings – Head of Finance 

 

Why? 

 

Coronavirus has cost, and lost, the Council money. Many years of austerity before that, as well 

as a failure to increase Council tax in line with growing costs, makes it hard to balance the books. 

The future funding picture for Councils from Government remains unclear. In order to deliver a 

progressive and ambitious agenda, we need to reduce the gap between income and expenditure 

in our Medium-Term Financial Plan.  

 

So:  

 

We will invest to save and act responsibly and ethically with our financial resources. We will work 

with other Councils for fair funding and will investigate new viable sources of revenue in order to 

maintain and improve vital services. We will ensure all financial operations and reporting support 

effective decision making and strong, ethical governance. 

 

Key Activity in Q2:   

 

To invest, save and act responsibly and ethically with our financial resources, this Quarter the Council produced a cost options analysis for the 
new council offices on an invest to save basis, to support decision-making. The Cabinet and Full Council reports on progressing with the building 
were published at the end of this Quarter, ahead of meetings scheduled for the start of October. 
 
To progress the Council’s aim to exercise strong Stewardship of all Council assets, Cabinet also approved the Strategic Property Review in 
September.  
 

THEME 6. INVESTMENTS THAT REBUILD OUR FINANCIAL VIABILITY 

  

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 9



33 
 

This Quarter, Officers have also worked with Link Asset Services, the Council’s treasury management advisors, on a review of funds to provide 
options for treasury investments. This has included discussions regarding South’s environmental, social and governance criteria for investments. 
 
To further the council’s ambitions to investigate new viable sources of revenue to maintain and improve vital services, Finance is continuing to 
work with the Didcot Garden Town team and Technical Services to explore the potential options for open space stewardship at sites in Didcot. 
 
Moreover, the Council has progressed a Property Investment Strategy this Quarter. This is designed to diversify the Council’s revenue streams, 
improve its effectiveness and ensure its ongoing viability.  
 
In order to maximise external funding opportunities to support the Council’s services and to enrich the district’s leisure, sporting and community 
activities, the Planning and Planning Policy teams have reviewed the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule this Quarter. A 
report on CIL spend (including guidance on allocation) has also been scheduled to be presented at October’s Cabinet briefing, in Q3. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 9



34 
 

Performance Measures  

 

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead Performance Update 

IRFV1 

Develop and 
implement an 
innovative 
Transformation 
Strategy to diversify 
our revenue streams, 
improve our 
effectiveness and 
secure our on-going 
viability 

Narrative measure relating to the 
development of an overarching 
Transformation Strategy and any overall 
narrative linking to potential deliverables 
 
Quantitative data - Income relative to 
Net expenditure (in context), this could 
be broken down by service. 

Cllr Leigh 
Rawlins 

Deputy Chief 
Executive – 
Transformation 
and Operations 

While a stand-alone Transformation Strategy is not being developed, 

officers are working on strategies to improve the councils’ financial 

resilience and on-going viability. As part of this, the property investment 

strategy is being progressed, and external advisors Link are supporting a 

funds review to enable the councils to consider different investments. 

IRFV2 

“Invest to save” for the 
District, including the 
delivery of sustainable 
new Council offices – 
on time and within 
budget – to realise 
future operational 
efficiencies 

Narrative on progress of the Corporate 
Office project, including data on current 
spend on office accommodation which 
will no longer be spent once project 
completed. Further narrative to discuss 
impact of new building finances. 

Cllr Leigh 
Rawlins  

Deputy Chief 
Executive – 
Transformation 
and Operations 

A cost options analysis for the new council offices on an invest to save 

basis has been produced to support decision-making. The Cabinet and Full 

Council reports on progressing with the new building were published at the 

end of Q2 2021/22 – ahead of meetings scheduled for the start of October. 

IRFV3 

Exercise strong 
Stewardship of all 
Council assets 
including property and 
financial investments, 
optimising their 
performance for the 
benefit of our 
residents 

Narrative update on the progress of the 
SPR, in the initial period detailing the 
scope and scape, then once SPR has 
been delivered, the outcomes and future 
measures (quant element) 

Cllr Leigh 
Rawlins  

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

The Strategic Property Review progressed through Cabinet in September. 

It will go before Full Council in Q3 2021/22.  

 

The Council’s Asset Management Group is scheduled to meet during Q3 

2021/22 where it will agree its Terms of Reference and establish a work 

programme. 

 

Finance are continuing to work with Didcot Garden Town and Technical 

Services to explore the potential options for open space stewardship at 

sites in Didcot. 

 

 

  

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 9



35 
 

Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 

Lead 
Officer Lead 

Performance Update 

IRFV4 

Maximise external 
funding opportunities 
to support our 
services and to enrich 
our leisure, sporting 
and community 
activities 

Narrative update relating to external 
funding utilisation, both funding received 
direct to the Council, and projects which 
have received part external funding or 
are in progress if not already delivered. 
 
Specific elements which should be 
included - Proportion of spend on 
leisure/community facilities vs amount 
funded by Council.  
 
CIL/106 spend broken down by 
type/parish 
 
Externally funded Capital schemes 
 
Total External funding received figure - 
narrative should be clear that this is not 
the total figure.  

Cllr 
Maggie-
Fillipova 
Rivers  

Head of 
Development 
& Corporate 
Landlord 

The CIL charging schedule is currently being reviewed by the planning and 
planning policy teams. 
 
Cabinet members continue to be provided with quarterly CIL and s106 
spend/income reports. In addition, a report on CIL spend (including 
guidance on allocation) will be presented to Cabinet briefing in October. 
 
At the end of Q2 2021/22, the available CIL balance for South Oxfordshire 
stood at £7,422,895.73. Funding of £60,000 for the Chalgrove Flood 
alleviation Scheme was approved by Individual Cabinet Member Decision 
in July 2021. 

IRFV5 

Invest responsibly and 
ethically with the 
Climate Emergency at 
the heart of what we 
do 

Narrative update detailing changes which 
have included climate elements into 
regularised decision making.  

Cllr Leigh 
Rawlins  

Head of 
Finance 

Environmental, social and governance criteria are currently being 

discussed with the Council’s treasury management advisors. It remains a 

work in progress. 

 

  

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 9



36 
 

 

 

Covid-19 has been an unprecedented challenge which required the Council to react quickly to changing circumstances in order to support local 

businesses, the economy, the voluntary and community sector and local residents. We have worked hard to maintain essential services whilst 

redeploying staff to new areas of work to help deal with the crisis. The Council developed a Community Hub team during the pandemic to work 

effectively with voluntary sector partners and volunteers, the work of the Hub is ongoing.  

The team also continue to collaborate with our partners at a County-wide level. More specifically, it facilitates coordination and good communication 

between the County, City and District Councils, with the NHS and OxLEP, to support vulnerable people and encourage vaccination uptake in the 

district. Q2 saw a steep increase in the number of test and trace payments made to residents in the district, administered by the Revenues and 

Benefits Team. The increase was due to a spike in the number of cases of Covid-19 and the number of people asked to isolate. Nationally, the 

phenomenon became known at the time as the ‘pingdemic’. See chart C, page 36. 

 

COVID-19 Community Hub Support distributed between 01 July to 30 September 2021:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

COVID-19 RESPONSE AND RECOVERY 

£1,675 
TO VOLUNTARY 

SECTOR AND 

HOUSEHOLDS 

11 

VOUCHER 

REFERRALS 

 

£4.8m 
TO LOCAL 

BUSINESSES 

         251  

TEST & TRACE 

PAYMENTS 

 

10 

FOOD 

PARCELS 

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 9



37 
 

Chart C: Test and Trace Payments in Q1 and Q2 

 

 

 

251

28

Q2

Q1

Test and Trace Payments 

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 9



Document is Restricted

Page 96

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Recommendations and updates from other committees
	7 Covid response and next steps
	Appendix 5 - Recovery and Renewal Framework

	8 Oxfordshire Plan 2050
	Appendix 1 - Oxfordshire Plan Statement of Community Involvement

	9 Corporate plan performance monitoring report Q2 2021/22
	12 Minutes

